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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of
the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of the companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and
no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars give in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and
there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Millennium Pacific Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present the annual report of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2015.

LISTING

On 18 July 2014, the Company was successfully listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing”). The Listing has laid a
foundation for the Group’s continuous development.

BUSINESS REVIEW

2015 was a fast changing and difficult year. During the year, the Group
recorded a net loss. Such loss was mainly because (i) the largest customer of
the Group (according to the consolidated financial results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2014) has ceased to place order for GPS personal
navigation devices from the Group in June 2015 due to the change of its
product line; (i) the market of the products of the Group such as GPS personal
navigation devices and mobile internet devices has reached saturation at such
rates faster than the Group has anticipated; and (i) the sales performance of
the Group’s new mobile internet device products with new operating system
was unsatisfactory. The loss of orders from the largest customer of the Group
resulted in significant decrease in turnover of the Group.

With the competitive market condition, the Group has sought to expand its
product portfolio. In July 2015, the Group launched its health tracking product,
Fitness Bracelet, under its existing principal business. Fitness Bracelet is a key
product for tracking the activities of an individual. This health-tracking product
can be worn at all times to track the steps and calories burned. The health
analysis of the Fitness Bracelet can help an individual tracks the real progress
of his workouts and to achieve fitness goal more efficiently. The Fitness
Bracelet is distributing through several retailers.

The Group would like to share more details of the Group’s performance,
financial position and other information in the year 2015 with shareholders in
the following section of management discussion and analysis.

SHARE SUBDIVISION

An ordinary resolution was passed at the extraordinary general meeting of
Company held on 7 January 2015 which approved the subdivision of each of
the issued and unissued ordinary shares of the Company of par value of
HK$0.01 each into ten subdivided Shares of par value of HK$0.001 each. The
number of outstanding share options and exercise price have been adjusted
from 1,944,000 share options at an exercise price of HK$1.35 per Share to
19,440,000 share options at an exercise price of HK$0.135 per subdivided
Share. Details of the above are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 7 January 2015.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®RE

An ordinary resolution was passed at the extraordinary general meeting of
Company held on 8 October 2015 which approved the subdivision of each of
the issued and unissued ordinary shares of the Company of par value of
HK$0.001 each into five subdivided Shares of par value of HK$0.0002 each.
The number of outstanding share options and exercise price have been
adjusted from 19,440,000 share options at an exercise price of HK$0.135 per
Share to 97,200,000 share options at an exercise price of HK$0.027 per
subdivided Share. Details of the above are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 8 October 2015.

PROPOSED ISSUE OF DEBT SECURITIES

On 26 May 2015, the Board considered and approved a resolution in relation
to the issue of the debt securities with an aggregate principal amount up to
HK$300,000,000 (the “Proposed Issue”). The debt securities may be issued
in the form of bonds or convertible bonds at the interest rate of 6% per annum
for a term of 1-7 years. Details of the above are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 26 May 2015. As at the date of this annual report, the
Company has not identified any potential investors of the debt securities. No
legally binding agreement in respect of the Proposed Issue has been entered
into. The Company will make further announcement(s) as and when
appropriate and comply with all other applicable requirements under the GEM
Listing Rules.

BUSINESS UPDATE

On 18 June 2015, the Company and AMTD Asset Management Limited
(“AMTD”) entered into an agreement pursuant to which AMTD shall be
engaged to source investors to subscribe for any convertible bonds and/or
debt instruments to be issued by the Company within 12 months from the
date of the Agreement. Details of the above are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 18 Jun 2015. As at the date of this annual report,
AMTD has not sourced any potential investors to subscribe for any convertible
bonds and/or debt instruments to be issued by the Company. The Company
will make further announcement(s) as and when appropriate and comply with
all other applicable requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

PROSPECTS

Apart from our commitment to the development of our core business, we will
actively make progress to generate growth and strive for potential and new
business opportunities. On 16 October 2015, the Group entered into the
cooperation agreement with Beijing Hongyanyayun Cultural Industry Limited
(“Beijing Hongyanyayun”), Chinese Qipao Society Limited and Cgpmall
Limited (“Cgpmall”), pursuant to which the parties agreed that Cgpmall and
Beijing Hongyanyayun shall authorize the Company to be their exclusive
partner to, inter alia, establish, maintain and operate the internet trading
platform to enhance our revenue. The Company shall be entitled to receive a
service fee from Beijing Hongyanyayun and Cgpmall which is 20% of the
transaction amount for each transaction. After the launch of this project, which
is expected to take place in 2016, the Group will have a new business of
operating internet trading platform. Details of the above are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 16 October 2015.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

The internet trading platform: “CQP Mall” is an innovative platform integrated
with Life Style Sharing Social Network and eCommerce Online Shopping to
promote better quality of life from different perspectives, such as Health,
Beauty, Fashion, Culture and Living, etc.

CQP Mall allows members to discover and share their life style by posting
media to the platform and enjoy better quality of life by shopping the quality
products and services online.

Our slogan is “quality life is from caring quality products!”

The Company believes CQP Mall customers shall have different experience on
life style sharing and online shopping by using CQP Mall and we will leverage
the Big Data of the platform and Business Intelligence Technology to drive
more revenue and profits from online sales and advertisement.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group remains committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. All board committees have effectively supported the Board in
carrying out its responsibilities. By conducting its business under good
corporate governance, the Group’s and shareholder’s long term interests will
be maximized.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my warmest thanks to the
management and our staff for their significant contributions. | would like to
expend my sincere gratitude to all our shareholders and investors for their
endless support. With the solid business base and the effort of all staff, the
Group will endeavor to open a new chapter in the future.

Tang Wai Ting, Samson
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2016

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / & E #} & 2015

EMPERGYE [HEXE | REAEEN A D FTHZEE R
EFHBMELBYNAFTE  EECTREE(flmE
FRBBH LREERF)RELFEER -

EXEESEEBNTFAEMIERAARMERRE LD Z
EESTR YERLDEREEERRRBURELEER -

HMW ORI EEEENEXERR |

ARABMEEEXENEFEEBERAEERAR ST ER
TRNEFTADZRMELEYER  hRMABERZFE
FYR B MR BRI - R THR LI E R S A R am KOs
) o

h¥EER

REBEBINERRKTIZLEER - 2HEERREY
ERBCE EUXFKESS - ERENEEERT A%
B R RENEBEEEEA -

B
AARNRREZEROEHEEERETAMNHZEER
B MROBAAEEZBERNIREE — BRI -
BEARERENEGERLZ2EETNE )  ARENE
RAKEREL—EE -

FE
HEE

BE T AF=A=t—H



Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBNWR DM

OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the research and development,
manufacturing and sale of consumer electronic products, such as fitness
bracelet, GPS personal navigation devices, mobile internet devices and digital
video recorders. The Group provides one-stop services to our customers by
offering design, prototyping/sampling, manufacturing, assembling and
packaging of their products. The turnover of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 was approximately HK$67.1 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 71.7% from approximately HK$237.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014. The decrease in sales was mainly because (i) the
largest customer of the Group (according to the consolidated financial results
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014) has ceased to place
order for GPS personal navigation devices from the Group due to the change
of its product line; (i) the market of the products of the Group such as GPS
personal navigation devices and mobile internet devices has reached
saturation at such rates faster than the Group has anticipated; and (jii) the
sales performance of the Group’s new mobile internet device products with
new operating system was unsatisfactory. The loss of orders from the largest
customer of the Group resulted in significant decrease in turnover of the
Group. The Group is actively seeking ways to expand its business through
broadening its product category and identifying new customers in order to
generate more revenue of the Group as soon as possible.

To broaden our product category and sales channel, in July 2015 the Group
launched fitness bracelet, a new product under its existing principal business.
Our fitness bracelets are now sold in third-party retailers and online platform.
The Group may also consider to establish an internet trading platform for the
sale of our products and third parties products to enhance our revenue. The
following table sets forth the breakdowns of the turnover of the Group for each
of the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2015:

mE

AEBTENRNE HERHEHREETER P2y

FIR - GPSEAEMRM  THEREE REBREEK

o REBBRBIRMRF - REMELE B EE - 208
KERBREGMATFRE-UAIRYE - AEEEEZ-F

—RET A=t RUEFEZEERANTABEBT

BHE-T—FT_A=1+—HIEFEZH2B7265EH
TTRLHT1.7% - HEERL EEHR () AEBZEREF
(REAEBHE—_T-—NF+_A=+—BHLEFEZEE
WIBEE) AN EERMEEBMSE - UL RS ERE
GPSEA B EAE ¢ (i) AN 5 B dn (1A GPS B A& fin 35 18 &

TEEREE) TISRASERARE RETEM « K (i) A
SEBEFRERG T THEREBEZHERRERA
B REAEESZREP R BERAEE 2 & XA MR
Do REBE LB S KON EEARERB A BREZER LY
BMEP  BRSAEHBRAEE S WS -

RITAERBRIMEERE R_2—RF LA A&EHE
HRAIEXBTHE—ENER - BHEFR -EH5FR
ERREZFZERRB LT EHE - REETAT8E EK

YEHBBRZYE t/(i%i‘iﬁﬁﬁ’]?u%&%:ﬁfxu% T RELE
EinlEs o TREIAKEREBEE T -OFR_F0F

+ZA=+—H ﬁi&%i?ﬁz?uﬂuﬁiﬁzMigﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁi

For the year ended 31 December
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HK$’000 HK$'000
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Sales of manufactured products SHES 2R E M 56,150 214,654
Sales on trading of electronic products, ETEM EEEREMBESZHE

accessories and raw materials 10,948 22,572

67,098 237,226
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREFN WD

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

The majority of the Group’s cost of sales was raw material costs. The Group’s
cost of sales dropped in line with the turnover by 71.0% to approximately
HK$61.1 million between the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2015. The
gross profit margin dropped substantially from approximately 11.3% for the
year ended 31 December 2014 to approximately 9.0% for the year ended 31
December 2015. The drop of gross profit margin was mainly because the
largest customer of the Group has ceased to place order for GPS personal
navigation devices from the Group due to the change of its product line. The
loss of such orders from this customer resulted in significant drop in gross
profit margin of the Group. The gross profit also dropped from approximately
HK$26.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to approximately
HK$6.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 mainly due to the
decline in revenue.

Expenses

Staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2015 was approximately HK$14.5
million (2014: approximately HK$16.6 million), representing a decrease of
approximately HK$2.1 million as compared with the last year, which was
mainly due to drop in average headcount during the year.

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2015 was
approximately HK$20.9 million (2014: approximately HK$23.4 million),
representing an decrease of approximately HK$2.5 million of last year, mainly
due to the Listing expenses was incurred for the year ended 31 December
2014.

Taxes

The income tax expense comprised Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) for the year. The income tax expense for the
year ended 31 December 2015 was approximately HK$19,000 (2014:
HK$1,216,000).

Hong Kong Profits Tax is provided at 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) based on the
assessable profits for the year. PRC EIT is calculated at 15% (2014: 15%) on
the assessable profits for the year. On 26 December 2014, Central Pacific Int
Technology Limited (“CPIT”), a Company’s PRC subsidiary, was granted
status of High and New Technology Enterprise and entitled to preferential EIT
rate of 15% from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016 provided CPIT
continues engaging in activities which meet the criteria of being a High and
New Technology Enterprise pursuant to No. 28 of the EIT Law of the PRC
(“EIT Law”) and No. 93 of the Regulation on the Implementation of the EIT Law
promulgated by the State Council of the PRC.

Loss for the Year

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately HK$17.5 million during the
year ended 31 December 2015, as compared with a net loss of approximately
HK$1.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2014. The loss was primarily
due to the substantial drop in revenue, mainly because (i) the largest customer
of the Group has ceased to place order for GPS personal navigation devices
from the Group due to the change of its product line; (i) the market of the
products of the Group such as GPS personal navigation devices and mobile
internet devices has reached saturation at such rates faster than the Group
has anticipated; and (i) the sales performance of the Group’s new mobile
internet device products with new operating system was unsatisfactory.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBNWR DM

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

Historically, the Group has funded the liquidity and capital requirements
primarily through operating cash flows and bank borrowings. On 18 July 2014,
the Company was listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange by way of placing
and completed the placing of 34,500,000 Shares at placing price of HK$1.35.
The actual net proceeds from the issue of new shares of the Company under
the placing were approximately HK$30.3 million. The Directors believe that
with the new capital from the placing of Shares on the GEM, the Group is in a
healthy financial position to expand its core business and to achieve its
business objectives. As at 31 December 2015, the Group had various bank
borrowings and overdrafts of approximately HK$Nil (31 December 2014:
HK$8.0 million). The Group requires cash primarily for working capital needs.
As at 31 December 2015, the Group had approximately HK$33.0 million in
bank and cash balances (31 December 2014: HK$54.3 million).

On 26 May 2015, the Board considered and approved a resolution in relation
to the issue of the debt securities with an aggregate principal amount up to
HK$300,000,000. The debt securities may be issued in the form of bonds or
convertible bonds at the interest rate of 6% per annum for a term of 1-7 years.
However, up to the date of this report, no such debt securities were issued.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2015, all of our bank borrowings and overdrafts have
been repaid, therefore the gearing ratio dropped from approximately 12.9% as
at 31 December 2014 to approximately 0.4% as at 31 December 2015.

Note: Gearing ratio is calculated as the total debt divided by total equity. For the
avoidance of doubt, total debt includes bank borrowing and finance lease
obligation.

OPERATION REVIEW

Outlook

In 2015, there was intense competition in the consumer electronic product
market. The market of the products of the Group such as GPS personal
navigation devices and mobile internet devices has reached saturation at such
rates faster than the Group has anticipated. Besides, the largest customer of
the Group (according to the consolidated financial results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2014) has ceased to place order for GPS personal
navigation devices from the Group since June 2015 due to the change of its
product line. Both led to the drop in revenue of the year ended 31 December
2015.

With the competitive market condition, the Group has sought to expand its

product portfolio. In July 2015, the Group launched its health tracking product,
Fitness Bracelet, under its existing principal business.
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In April 2015 and October 2015, the Group established two new subsidiaries
in Hong Kong, namely Millennium Pacific Information Technology Limited and
Millennium Pacific Investments Limited. Millennium Pacific Information
Technology Limited was established to assist the Group’s marketing and
e-commerce services. Millennium Pacific Investments Limited was established
to assist the Group’s investment opportunities.

Looking forward, the Group will remain committed to the development of our
principal business. Apart from enhancing the research and development
function and expanding its product functionality, the Group is contemplating to
develop on its own or seek cooperation with third party companies for
involving in data management or development of software including operation
system and application software activities. Given the continue decline in
revenue, the Group continues to seek new investment opportunities with
growth potential. No target has been confirmed and no decision of such has
been made by the Board. The Company will make announcement on these
matters (if any) in due course.

Business Development

The Group actively makes progress to generate growth and strives for
potential and new business opportunities. In 2015, the Group has entered into
a number of cooperation agreements with various parties in order to explore
business opportunities and expand sales network.

On 28 January 2015, the Company and Sichuan Chanrongyun Investment
Limited (“Sichuan Chanrongyun”) entered into the strategic cooperation
agreement pursuant to which Sichuan Chanrongyun shall be engaged to
assist the Company in developing the sales network of its subsidiaries. Details
of the above are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 28 January
2015. The strategic cooperation agreement expired by effluxion of time on 27
July 2015.

On 14 April 2015, the Company and Sichuan Chanrongyun entered into
another strategic cooperation agreement pursuant to which Sichuan
Chanrongyun shall be engaged to assist the Company in developing the sales
network of its subsidiaries. Details of the above are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 14 April 2015. The strategic cooperation agreement
expired by effluxion of time on 14 October 2015.

On 27 May 2015, the Company and Master Concept International Limited
(“Master Concept”) entered into a strategic cooperation agreement pursuant
to which the Company will cooperate with Master Concept for development of
software including operation system and application software and integrate
them into our electronic consumer products. Details of the above are set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 27 May 2015. The strategic
cooperation agreement expired by effluxion of time on 27 November 2015.

On 26 June 2015, the Company and Shenzhen Creative Products Technology
Company Limited (“SZ Creative Products”) entered into a strategic
cooperation agreement pursuant to which the Company will cooperate with
SZ Creative Products for the development of sales network. Details of the
above are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 26 June 2015. The
strategic cooperation agreement have terminated on 21 September 2015.
Details of the above are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 21
September 2015.

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / & EE $} & 2015

RZZE-—RAFMARZZ—AE T REBEELEEEK
SO fE E M B A ® - BIMillennium Pacific Information
Technology Limited } Millennium Pacific Investments
Limited o Millennium Pacific Information Technology Limited
BRI D RB A EBO T SHEENE FREERE - KL
Millennium Pacific Investments Limited 81| 2 & 7N & B IE 12 1%
EEHEREME -

RERN  AEBNIHBANRFAELIEER - REHED
BEREREEMRMAES  AEEF BB IRBME=TEE
N2EBIBEEXRMRE  LERERRLEREUME
B - ZRIRSHETE  AREEESHAFERENZ
HRAKE - REEWREE R B ERERGIRELE
AHABAE - ARASERRUHEEE (WA EHAE -

EBBR
REBEEGEZNEHRRERENFEEERNEHK - R_F
—hF ARECHEZEALILZEAFERS - ABER
B RIEASHE A4 -

WZZE-RAF—AZ+/N\B  ARBEDIEBREREFR
AR (TEIERE DRI IRB A ERE - Bt HIERE
1S HEZ BE 17 BY R 1 B R BE B B 8 B M 8 S 44 J:Xﬁfruﬂ’]
HEHERARRAMA T —AF A=t/ \RNAE -
BEEHZER _T—HFELA - +HHEW -

RIZB—RFWHA+MAE - KARENY) I EREF NS —H
KGR e - Bt - MIIERESHEZEIHB AR ARE

HIB A RS HERLR - EXPTleFBERN A AT HHA
“E-RAFNATEANAS c REAEREER TR
F+ATIAREM

RZZ-—RFAA-+ER AAFAEBBEEREERAA
(L%i&l%lJ)Ji%ﬂi G K”D\TH%,\_*EI
ﬁ?’%éf’ﬁlﬁ%iﬂ#(@%T&H’E%ﬁ&ﬁéﬁ)ﬂﬁx{#) 5 E RAAR

MEFHBEEM - EXA %i’\%ﬁﬁé‘ﬁﬁﬁ? Shis
z=— ﬁiﬁﬂ TEHHNAE - RBAEBZEENR _-F—R
Ft—A=-ttREm-

WZZE-RAFRAZTRA  ARRERITERBRER
BRAR (DRYIAIGR DTS S EE - B - ARFHE
HERYIA R A EF B E R - EXPRM RSN A AT
HBA-—ZE—HF A TRANASE - BEAEREER
“E-RFAAST AL - BFBRERARATAHNA
“Z-hAFNAZT—HBRE -

11



Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBNWR DM

On 26 June 2015, the Company and Element of elLiving (Holdings) Limited
(“Element of eLiving”) entered into a strategic cooperation agreement
pursuant to which the Company will cooperate with Element of eLiving for
promoting the products of the Company. Details of the above are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 26 June 2015. The Strategic
Cooperation Agreement expired by effluxion of time on 26 September 2015.

On 13 July 2015, the Company and Guangzhou Shi Xi Investment
Management Limited (“GZ Shi Xi”) entered into a strategic cooperation
agreement pursuant to which the Company will further negotiate with GZ Shi
Xi for the expansion of sales network through internet platform. Details of the
above are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 13 July 2015. The
strategic cooperation agreement expired by effluxion of time on 13 January
2016.

On 20 August 2015, the Company, Chinese Qipao Society Limited and Beijing
Hongyanyayun entered into a strategic cooperation agreement pursuant to
which Chinese Qipao Society Limited and Beijing Hongyanyayun shall engage
the Company for establishing, maintaining and operating an electronic trading
platform for members of Chinese Qipao Society Limited and the Company can
promote and market its products or conduct the relevant business activities
with the members of Chinese Qipao Society Limited. On 18 October 2015, the
Company entered into a cooperation agreement with Beijing Hongyanyayun,
Chinese Qipao Society Limited and Cgpmall, pursuant to which the Parties
agreed that Cgpmall and Beijing Hongyanyayun shall authorize the Company
to be their exclusive partner to, inter alia, establish, maintain and operate the
internet trading platform. Details of the above are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 20 August 2015 and 18 October 2015.

On 10 September 2015, the Company and Sichuan Chanrongyun entered into
a strategic cooperation agreement pursuant to which Sichuan Chanrongyun
shall be engaged to assist the Company in developing its sales network and
expand its customer base. Details of the above are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 10 September 2015. The strategic cooperation
agreement expired by effluxion of time on 10 March 2016.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a total of 145 employees. The
Group’s staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to
approximately HK$14.5 million (2014: approximately HK$16.6 million). The
Group’s remuneration policies are in line with the prevailing market practice
and are determined on the basis of performance, qualification and experience
of individual employee. The Group recognises the importance of a good
relationship with its employees. The remuneration payable to its employees
includes salaries and allowances. Other benefits and incentives include training
and share option.
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In Hong Kong, the Group’s employees have participated in the mandatory
provident fund prescribed by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong). In the PRC, the Group’s
employees have participated in the basic pension insurance, basic medical
insurance, unemployment insurance, occupational injury insurance, maternity
insurance prescribed by the Social Insurance Law of the PRC ({1 A R £ H1
*t & 1R B /% )), and housing fund prescribed by the Regulations on the
Administration of Housing Fund ({ { 5 A #& & & 12 % 1l )). All PRC based
employees have the right to participate in the social insurance and housing
provident fund schemes.

Capital expenditure

The Group purchased property, plant and equipment amounting to
approximately HK$0.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014:
approximately HK$0.1 million).

Capital commitments
The Group did not have any significant capital commitments as at 31
December 2015 (2014 Nil).

Foreign Currency Risk
The Company does not have significant exposure on foreign currency risk.

The functional currency of the Group’s entities are principally denominated in
either HK$ or Renminbi (‘RMB”). The Group has certain exposure to foreign
currency risk as some of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in currencies other than its functional currency such as United
States dollars (“‘US$"). The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities.
The Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The Group did not engage in any derivatives agreement and did not commit to

any financial instruments to hedge its foreign exchange exposure during the
year ended 31 December 2015.
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Significant Investments held, Material Acquisitions and Disposals
of Subsidiaries, and Future Plans for Material Investments or
Capital Assets

On 11 November 2015, Millennium Pacific Investments Limited (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, the “Purchaser”) and HK New Huang Pu
Finance Holdings Limited (the “Vendor”) entered into the conditional sale and
purchase agreement (the “Agreement”), pursuant to which the Purchaser has
conditionally agreed to purchase and the Vendor has conditionally agreed to
sell the sale shareholdings, being 30% shareholdings of the XHP (Hong Kong)
Company Limited (the “Target Company”), for an aggregate consideration of
HK$8.8 million (subject to downward adjustment, if any), which shall be
satisfied by the allotment and issue of 3,776,824 new Shares of the Company
at HK$2.33 per Share to the Vendor. As the conditions for completion in the
Agreement have not been fulfilled or waived in writing by the Company on or
before the long stop date (i.e. 28 February 2016), and as the parties have not
agreed upon any time extension, the Agreement shall cease and determine
whereupon the provisions of the Agreement shall from such date have no
further force and effect and no party to the Agreement shall have any liability
thereunder (without prejudice to the rights of the parties in respect of any
antecedent breaches). Details of the above are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 11 November 2015 and 29 February 2016.

Save for the above and those disclosed in the section headed “Business
Objectives and Strategies” in the Company’s Prospectus dated 27 June 2014
(“Prospectus”) and save for the corporate reorganisation of the Group in
preparation for Listing, there were neither significant investments held as at 31
December 2015 nor material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries during
the year ended 31 December 2015. There is no plan for material investments
or capital assets as at the date of this report.

Charges over Assets of the Group

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no pledged deposits (31 December
2014: HK$Nil). The Group had a motor vehicle acquired under finance leases.
As at 31 December 2015 the carrying value of finance leases payables
amounted to approximately HK$0.2 million (31 December 2014: HK$0.3
million).

Dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2015.
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Comparison of business objectives with actual business
progress

An analysis comparing the business objectives as set out in the Prospectus for
the period from 21 June 2014, being the latest practicable date as defined in
the Prospectus (“‘LPD”), to 31 December 2015 (the “Review Period”) with
the Group’s actual business progress for the Review Period is set out as
follows:

Business Objective for the Review Period

B 575 B 2

(B EERERETER 2R

BRERAHEH T - OFAA -+ B (ANBREREE
MERERAITER(&RERTTER)) =-F—0F
TZA=+-RHBE(EEHE]) XK B REREER
BERRNEREGER Z BT -

Actual Business Progress up to 31 December 2015

BE-Z-AF+-A=+-A2EBBREBER

Expanding the production capacity and scale

EAERREAR

determine the specification of additional surface mount technology
(the “SMT”) production facilities
EEMISREARLET ([SMT ) 25 R R A%

acquire and install additional SMT production facilities

g B N 2 R FAHN SMT A = 7R e
expand the Group’s operation with the additional SMT production facilities

IARTIZH) SMT £ E R IR AR 5 218

Strengthening the research and development capabilities

DGR #EES

formulate an research and development improvement plan and set out the
detailed steps, measures and scope of engineering improvement
programme

HIESCEM TS - WERAFALE - FARSE TR ENEHE

recruit six employees with engineering expertise in the PRC
TEHEBERLIREEAS

acquire equipment to enhance the operating system for both GPS personal
navigation devices and mobile internet devices

I B SR WA IS 58 GPS A A B MR E RITEEEE BENRERR

acquire equipment to enhance the audio/visual effect of mobile internet
devices

BESERRATEEEEENSIE RAMR

provide support to the Group’s eX|sting research and development function

RESERTASR AT HBEE
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The Group is reviewing the needs and timeframe for
acquiring additional SMT production facilities, and is in
the process of determining the specification of and
identifying suitable SMT production facilities
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The Group has formulated a research and development
improvement plan which sets out the detailed steps,
measures and scope of engineering improvement
programme
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The Group has employed six engineers in the PRC
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The Group has acquired equipment to enhance the
operating system

REEDBERBARTHEFRR

The Group has cooperated with third party for support
our existing research and development
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Business Objective for the Review Period

EESAEELER

Actual Business Progress up to 31 December 2015
BE_Z-—HF+T-A=1+—HZEREKER

Improving the information technology system
HREABIE RS

— acquire a new Enterprise Resource Planning (‘ERP”) system

—  EBEFCEBRSAS(ERP])Z5

— recruit six personnel with expertise in information technology for the
operation and maintenance of the new ERP system

—  HERZEARMEEZEABRIEREENERP ZS

— integrate the ERP system into the Group’s operation

- 15 ERP Rt EE AN F &
— acquire computers and servers to support the new ERP system and to
upgrade the new ERP system

ERRA

— EEERIARESIRITERP R LT ARHTERP R4L

The principal risks and uncertainties in implementation of the Group’s business
strategies are (i) the expansion of the production facilities, in particular our
SMT production facilities, may not be as successful as we have planned or
such expansion may result in over-capacity and, adverse impact to our net
profit margin, and may affect our financial conditions and the demand for our
products and our revenue and profit may not increase proportionally to our
increased capacity; and (ii) failure to implement our expansion plans
successfully. As disclosed in our Prospectus, our Group planned to acquire
two SMT production lines. To avoid over-capacity, our Group would acquire
the second additional SMT production line during the six months ending 30
June 2016 when the utilisation rate accumulates and reaches 80%. Should
the utilisation rate of our production facilities fall unexpectedly, it is also one of
our Group’s contingency plans to generate extra revenue through the
provision of other services to customers.
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The Group is reviewing the timeframe for acquiring a
new ERP system. During the period, the Group has
upgraded the existing ERP system on a small scale
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The Group has employed three programmer
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The Group has integrated existing ERP system into the
Group " s operation
REBECHSERP RS AEEEERS

The Group has acquired the equipments to support the
ERP system and upgraded the existing ERP system on
a small scale
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Use of Proceeds from the Listing

The actual net proceeds from the issue of new shares of the Company under
the placing as set out in the Prospectus were approximately HK$30.3 million,
which was different from the estimated net proceeds of approximately
HK$34.8 million (estimated on the assumption that the placing price would be
the mid-point of the stated range as stated in the Prospectus). The Group
adjusted the use of proceeds in the same manner and in the same proportion
as shown in the Prospectus, and approximately HK$12.4 million, HK$8.0
million, HK$3.3 million, HK$3.6 million and HK$3.0 million were adjusted for i)
repayment of bank borrowings; i) expanding the production capacity and
scale through the acquisition of additional SMT production facilities; iii)
strengthening and expanding the research and development team; iv)
improving the information technology system; and v) working capital
respectively. During the Review Period, the Group has applied the net
proceeds as follows:

LW RERAR

IR EIZATE - ARIBRCE BT AR B RAAEFIRE
BOFERAS03AEAI - EIEFAERIEFELNB48H
EET(RREEERERERMBEBEN S LIE) TR -
REE D RARERMMT X R LIRS HIERE - 4
12488ET  80BEEET 33ABELLI6AEET
BOBEABLYPRATEENARSE : ) EERITEN
i) 375 38 W A B S SMIT S 3 2R e X 7 B B AR AR < i) & K
BRMEER V) AREABRLS : k) 2EEE - R
CIEHME - AEEC S RIFEMETIIME

Adjusted use of
proceeds in the
same manner
and proportion

as stated in
Prospectus Actual usage
HBIRER AT
FR R FIAE
FERIERZ ERAR
Notes HK$ million HK$ million
Hiat BEET BEAT
Repayment of bank borrowings BEBITER 124 12.4
Expanding the production capacity and scale % B U BE 5B 9N SMT B3 2% e 18 A
through the acquisition of additional SMT ERENBE
production facilities 4 -
Strengthening and expanding the research and  hiNa& K & 70 iff 2 3 B
development team 2.4 1.3
Improving the information technology system HREARRE RS 2.6 0.9
Working capital EiEE S 3 3
24.4 17.6

The unused net proceeds have been placed as interest bearing deposits with
licensed bank in Hong Kong.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEEBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tang Wai Ting Samson, aged 53, is one of the co-founders of the
Group, an executive Director, the chairman of the Board, the chief executive
officer of the Group and one of our controlling shareholders (having the
meaning thereto under GEM listing Rules) (“Controlling Shareholders”). He
is also a member of the Compliance Committee. He is responsible for
formulating the corporate strategies and overseeing the overall business of the
Group. Mr. Tang has over 15 years of experience in selling consumer
electronic devices and over 20 years of experience in the research and
development of consumer electronic devices.

Mr. Tang received a Bachelor’s Degree in Electrical and Electronics
Engineering from the University of Bradford, UK, in July 1984. He worked in
the research and development department of two companies in UK, namely,
Racal Electronics Group Plc Ltd. from 1984 to 1988 and AFE Electronics
Group Ltd. from 1988 to 1992. The businesses of these companies were
manufacturing of products in relation to aviation, marine and electric
equipment and industrial control products respectively.

In 1997, Mr. Tang and Mrs. Tang jointly incorporated a company in UK,
namely Central Pacific International Trading Limited (formerly known as Pan
Express Foods Limited), to engage in the trading of computer accessories. In
light of the growing demand for GPS personal navigation devices and
leveraged on the experience and connections gained in the trading business,
Mr. Tang and Mrs. Tang together established CPE (one of our subsidiaries)
with the base situated in the PRC in 2004 to focus on the development and
sale of GPS personal navigation devices. The operation of Central Pacific
International Trading Limited then ceased and it was de-registered in 2006.

Ms. Leung Wai Hing Ella, aged 44, has over 17 years of experience in
electronics industry. Ms. Leung joined the Group in 2013 as a sales director, a
senior management position of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Ms.
Leung served various positions in Philips Electronics HK Limited from July
1997 to June 2001 and from April 2004 to August 2007, including cost
engineer, senior cost engineer, costing and IT manager and senior purchasing
manager. She also worked for Mattel Toys HK Limited as senior cost engineer
from July 2001 to March 2004. From August 2007 to July 2008, Ms. Leung
worked for Binatone Electronics Industries Limited as senior sourcing
manager. From July 2008 to April 2010, Ms. Leung worked for DIS
Technology (Hong Kong) Limited as general manager.

Ms. Leung holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Engineering from The University of
Hong Kong and a Master’s Degree in Science (Materials Science and
Engineering) from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. Ms.
Leung also obtained a certificate in professional accountancy from the School
of Continuing Studies, The Chinese University of Hong Kong in August 2001.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEEBEE

Mr. Mak Hing Keung Thomas , aged 53, has over 20 years of corporate
finance and accounting experience and has worked for an international
accounting firm, an investment bank and The Hong Kong Stock Exchange
Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Mak is currently non-executive director and member
of audit committee and remuneration committee of Huge China Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 428); an independent non-executive director, the
chairman of audit committee and a member of remuneration committee of Tao
Heung Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 573). Mr. Mak was appointed as
independent non-executive director, chairman of audit committee and
member of remuneration committee of China Greenfresh Group Company
Limited (Stock Code: 6183) with effect from 27th May 2015. Mr. Mak also
serves as a chief operations officer of HF Financial Group (China) Limited. Prior
to joining the Group Mr. Mak was the chief financial officer and company
secretary in various listed and private companies. Mr. Mak is also a member of
Hong Kong Business Accountants Association.

Mr. Mak holds a Bachelor degree of Commerce from Queen’s University,
Canada. Mr. Mak is a member of the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kor Sing Mung Michael, aged 44, was appointed as the non-executive
Director and the vice-chairman of the Board on 1 March 2016. Mr. Kor has
over 10 years of experience in project investment and corporation
management. He is an investor engaged in property and securities investment.
Mr. Kor is currently the president of an investment holding company which
operates a financial service group in the Asia Pacific region.

Mr. Tse Yee Hin, Tony , aged 46, holds a Bachelor of Science degree with
honors in Finance and Accounting from University of Salford, United Kingdom
and a degree in Executive Master of Business Administration from Richard
lvey School of Business, The University of Western Ontario, Canada. Mr. Tse
is @ member of each of lllinois Certified Public Accountants Society, American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Institute of Accountants Exchange,
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute and Hong Kong Securities
Professionals Association. Mr. Tse is also an associate member of The
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants of the United Kingdom and
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Tse has over 18
years of experience in corporate finance and accounting and has worked for
several international accounting firms, investment banks and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Tse is currently a managing director of
corporate finance department in Essence Corporate Finance (Hong Kong)
Limited and acts as its principal under the sponsor regime. Mr. Tse is also an
independent non-executive director, member of audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee of Yunbo Digital Synergy
Group Limited (Stock Code: 8050) since May 2014. Mr. Tse was a non-
executive director of China Oil Gangran Energy Group Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 8132) for the period from January 2014 to April 2015. Mr. Tse is a
responsible officer licensed under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQO”) to carry on Type 1
(dealing in securities) and Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated
activities.
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Dr. Li Ying, aged 57, obtained a degree of doctor of philosophy from The
University of Hong Kong in 1996. Dr. Li was a visiting scholar at the University
of Sydney, Australia from 2004 to 2005. Since 2005, Dr. Li has been a
member of China Society of Logistics, an executive director of Society of
Transportation and Logistics of China, vice secretary-general of The Chartered
Institute of Logistics and Transport International — China, and director of the
Bureau of International Co-operation of The Chartered Institute of Logistics
and Transportation International. Since 2003, Dr. Li has been a fellow of Asian
College of Knowledge Management. Dr. Li was a doctoral advisor at the
Department of Resources and Environment of the Chinese Academy of
Sciences from 1998 to 2003. Dr. Li is the professor and executive vice-
president at the South Branch of the Institute of the Digital China of Peking
University/Institute of Guangdong, the chief executive officer of Guangdong
Fanzai Radio Frequency Identification Public Technology Supporting Limited,
chairman of Guangdong South-China Logistics Public Information Platform
Operation Company Limited and also an expert to the Guangdong provincial
governor.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Chan Sze Man, aged 34, is an independent non-executive Director. Ms.
Chan is a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee. Ms. Chan has been a member of the HKICPA
since February 2007 and has over 9 years of experience in accounting and
auditing for Hong Kong listed companies and private companies. Ms. Chan
received a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration (majoring in
Accountancy) from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in
November 2003. Ms. Chan has been serving as the chief financial officer and
the company secretary of Tongda Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 698),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since January
2011. Between February 2012 and November 2013, Ms. Chan served as an
independent non-executive director on the board of Seamless Green China
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8150), a company listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange. Ms. Chan has also been serving as an independent non-executive
director on the board of Sunrise (China) Technology Group Limited (stock
code: 8226), a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange for the period
from October 2012 to April 2015.

In March 2012, two writs of summons were issued against Seamless Green
China (Holdings) Limited (“Seamless Green”) and its directors including Ms.
Chan. The writs were issued against Ms. Chan solely because she was one of
the directors of Seamless Green China (Holdings) Limited and none of the
claims stated in the writs was made against Ms. Chan personally. Both
plaintiffs (the “Plaintiffs”) were the shareholders of Seamless Green. The legal
representative of both claims confirmed that the writs will be obsolete in due
course. We are advised by Seamless Green’s legal representative that the
plaintiffs in both claims have not taken further step after the close of the
pleadings. Ms. Chan resigned her position as director of Seamless Green on 1
November 2013.
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Mr. Lee Wai Hung, aged 54, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr.
Lee is the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Compliance Committee.
Mr. Lee has been a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants since September 1988 and he received a Professional Diploma
in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 1985
and a Master Degree in Business Administration from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology in November 1995. Mr. Lee has
extensive experience in providing corporate and financial advisory services.
From March 1989 to October 1997, Mr. Lee worked in various senior positions
with a number of companies of different industries. Since October 1997, Mr.
Lee has been engaging in several corporate and financial advisory roles such
as acted as the vice-general manager for South China Bluesky Aviation Qil Co.
Ltd., and in June 2003, Mr. Lee acted as a financial controller for China Gas
Holdings Limited (stock code: 384), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. From September 2007 to June 2011, Mr. Lee worked in
a private company, which is principally engaged in providing finance advisory
services to corporate clients. Mr. Lee who acts as a consultant, is mainly
responsible for providing advice and day-to-day management of the company.
From October 2011 to present, Mr. Lee has been working in a private
company as a corporate advisor who is mainly responsible for providing
advice to the company and its associates.

Mr. Ng Ka Chung, aged 59, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr.
Ng is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Compliance Committee. Mr.
Ng has been admitted as a barrister in Hong Kong in October 1993 and had
served as a court prosecutor and senior court prosecutor at the Legal
Department, now known as the Department of Justice of the Hong Kong
government. He is currently a practicing barrister with over 20 years of
experience in the legal field. Mr. Ng received a Bachelor’'s Degree in Science
from the University of Alberta (Canada), in December 1980, he is a Graduate
of Common Profession of Examination in Laws from The HKU School of
Professional and Continuing Education, in May 1992, and the Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws (PCLL) from The University of Hong Kong in July 1993. Mr.
Ng has been serving as an independent non-executive director of China Oil
Gangran Energy Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Fairson Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 8132), a company listed on GEM, since August 2013.
Mr. Ng also served as an independent non-executive director of China Billion
Resources Limited (formerly known as Global Green Tech Group Limited)
(stock code: 274), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, from 7 January 2011 to 27 January 2011, and an independent
non-executive director of Carnival Group International Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Cash Retail Management Group Limited and Oriental
Ginza Holdings Limited) (stock code: 996), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, from 28 February 2006 to 16 December 2013.
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Ms. Eugenia Yang, aged 39, is an independent non-executive Director. Ms.
Yang is the chairlady of the Audit Committee and the Compliance Committee
and a member of both the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Ms. Yang is a practicing barrister in Hong Kong. She has been a
member of the HKICPA since July 2005 and a member of CPA Australia since
September 2003. Ms. Yang received a Bachelor's Degree in Commerce,
Postgraduate Diploma in Finance and a Master’s Degree in Commerce
(majoring in Finance) from The University of Melbourne, Australia, in March
1998, April 1999 and September 2000 respectively, and a Bachelor’s Degree
in Laws from Monash University, Australia, in March 2003. From August 2005
to May 2006, Ms. Yang was an independent non-executive director of Nority
International Group Limited (currently known as Wai Chun Mining Industry
Group Co. Ltd.) (stock code: 660), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Ms. Yang has been serving as an independent non-executive
director on the board of China Oil Gangran Energy Group Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Fairson Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8132), a company
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange since August 2013.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Li Sze Man, aged 36, is the chief financial officer of the Group. Ms. Li
has around 10 years of experience in the accounting and auditing fields. Prior
to joining the Group in September 2014, Ms. Li has held various accounting
positions in various companies in Hong Kong.

Ms. Li received a Bachelor’'s Degree in Business Administration from
Macquarie University, Australia in 2003 and a Master’s Degree in Commerce
(Accounting) from the University of New South Wales, Australia in 2004. Ms. Li
is a Certified Management Accountant of Australia.

Mr. Chou Chiu Ho, aged 34, is the company secretary of the Group. Mr.
Chou is a member of the compliance committee. Mr. Chou has over 10 years
of experience in accounting and auditing. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chou
served at PricewaterhouseCoopers from January 2006 to December 2010.
From January 2011 to March 2012, Mr. Chou worked as the head of
corporate services of ASR Holdings Limited (“ASR”) and was responsible for
overseeing the application of ASR for listing on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. ASR was successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange in January 2012 (stock code: 1803). Mr. Chou also served as a
chief financial officer of HF Financial Group (China) Limited since January 2015
and the company secretary of Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited
since November 2015.

Mr. Chou received a Bachelor’s Degree in Accountancy from The Hong Kong

Polytechnic University in 2003. Mr. Chou is a member of both the HKICPA and
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group has committed to upholding high standards of corporate
governance. The Board considers that enhanced public accountability and
corporate governance are beneficial for the healthy growth of the Group,
improving customer and supplier confidence and safeguarding the interests of
shareholders of the Group.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules as its own code effective
from 18 July 2014 (the “Listing Date”) upon the listing of the Company and
had complied with the CG Code for the year ended 31 December 2015,
except for the following deviation. The Board has continued to monitor and
review the corporate governance principles and practices to ensure
compliance.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Mr. Tang Wai Ting Samson (“Mr. Tang”) is the Chairman and the
chief executive officer of the Company. In view of Mr. Tang is one of the co-
founders of the Group and has been operating and managing the Group since
2004, the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr.
Tang taking up both roles for effective management and business
development. Therefore the Directors consider that the deviation from the CG
Code provision A.2.1 is appropriate in such circumstance.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings set out in Rule 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

Upon the specific enquiry made to all the Directors, the Company was not

aware of any non-compliance with the Model Code regarding securities
transactions by the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board currently comprises 10 directors, including 3 Executive Director, 3
Non-executive Directors and 4 Independent non-executive directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Tang Wai Ting, Samson (Chairman)
Ms. Leung Wai Hing, Ella

Mr. Mak Hing Keung, Thomas

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Kor Sing Mung, Michael (Vice-Chairman)
(Appointed on 1 March 2016)

Dr. Li Ying

Mr. Tse Yee Hin, Tony

Independent non-executive Directors
Ms. Chan Sze Man

Mr. Lee Wai Hung

Mr. Ng Ka Chung

Ms. Eugenia Yang

Details of backgrounds and qualifications of all directors are set out in the
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section of this annual
report. All directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Group. Each executive director has sufficient experience, knowledge and
execution ability to hold the position so as to carry out his duties effectively

and efficiently.
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During the financial year, 3 general meetings, 4 regular Board meetings and 4
other Board meetings were held in addition to circulation of written resolution.
The composition of the Board during the year and up to the date of this report,

Name of member

REER

Corporate Governance

General
Meeting
BREAS

Attendance record of meetings held in 2015
“E-REMETERNHELS
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee

ES® EREE®  FMEEE  REEES

RABMBEE  RTEBAEERAZER  BRI3AKREKX
B AREHRESEEZERINEMESEEE - FAKH
EAREAY  EFSMERUREKBR T —AFMET
and its members’ attendance record of meetings held in 2015 are shown — &K EREIIRAT ¢
below:

Compliance
Committee
EREES

Number of total meetings
R T

(note)
(FitzE)

3

Number of Meetings attended/Total
BHESEZRE, Y

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Tang Wai Ting, Samson

BEELE

Ms. Leung Wai Hing, Ella
(Appointed on 26 May 2015)

Z2EELT
(RZB-RFRA-TAAEEM)

Mr. Mak Hing Keung, Thomas
(Appointed on 26 May 2015)

ERBEE
(RZB-RFRAZTRAEZEM)

Non-executive Directors

FHTES

Mr. Kor Sing Mung, Michael
(Appointed on 1 March 2016)

Kor Sing Mung, Michael ¢4
(RZB-RE=A—BEZM)

Dr. Li Ying

FTEEL

Mr. Tse Yee Hin, Tony

HFEEE

Independent non-executive Directors
BUFHTES

Ms. Chan Sze Man

i e,

Mr. Lee Wai Hung

FRERE

Mr. Ng Ka Chung

hxEEE

Ms. Eugenia Yang

Br&xt

Note: Two extraordinary general meeting held on 7 January 2015 and 8 October 2015
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1/3

8/8 N/A TjE N/A T N/A T

6/8 N/A TNEf N/A TN N/A TNE

6/8 NATER N/A TEF N/A R

N/A TiER N/A TNE N/A &R N/A TNEfs

7/8 N/A TN N/A T N/A T

7/8 N/A NEF N/A NiEF N/ATER

8/8 4/4 4/4 4/4
8/8 4/4 4/4 4/4
6/8 2/4 2/4 4/4

8/8 4/4 4/4 4/4

FrRIRE »

4/4

N/A TN

N/A NiEF

N/A TN

N/A T i

N/A RiE R

N/A TjE
4/4
4/4

4/4

RIB-—AF-ALBRR-_Z-—HF+ANRRITRRER
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CG Code provision A.6.7 requires that Independent Non-Executive Directors
and other Non-executive Directors shall attend general meetings and develop
a balanced understanding of the views of Shareholders. Two Non-Executive
Director and four Independent Non-Executive Directors attended Annual
General Meeting. The other Directors were obliged to be away for their
business matters and for negotiating with potential business partners.

THE RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the control and leadership of management
company’s business and is collectively responsible for the company’s affair
under the Board’s direction and supervision. All the Directors should make
decision objectively in the interests of the Company

The overall responsibilities of the Board include considering and making
decisions on the following matters:

i

) Setting the cooperate goals of the Group and formulating the Group’s
strategy and monitoring the implementation;

(ii) Diversification and extension of activities into new business area;
(iii) Approving the annual, half year and quarterly results;

(iv)  Dividend policy;

(v) Material acquisitions and disposal;

(Vi) Reviewing and monitoring the Group’s internal control systems;

(vii)

Monitoring the performance of the Management; and

(vii)  Determining and reviewing the composition and diversity of the Board.
BOARD COMPOSITION AND DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy since 20 June 2014. The
policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity in the Board that should have
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Group’s business and compliance with policies. The
composition and diversity policies of the Board is reviewed annually and
regularly. The Board should ensure that its changes in composition will not
result in any undue interference. The Board members should possess
appropriate professionalism, experience and trustworthiness in performing
duties and functions. The Board would diversify its members according to the
Company’s situations and need. While participating in nomination and
recommendation of director candidates during the year, each member of the
Board may consider a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, or professional
experience in achieving diversity for the benefit of the Company’s various
business development and management. The Board is to review the policy
concerning diversity of Board members, and to disclose the policy or a
summary of the policy in the corporate governance report, including any
quantitative targets and standards and its progress with policy
implementation.
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In 2015, the Board has reviewed the diversity of the Board and considered the
Board composition and diversity policy is appropriate.

MANAGEMENT

The daily management, administration and operation of the Company are
delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management (the
“Management”). The delegated functions and assignments are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to entering into
any significant transactions by the above mentioned officers.

The overall responsibilities of the Management include considering and making
decisions on the following matters:

(i) Implementing the Group’s policy and strategies as set by the Board;
(ii) Strategic planning of different business and functions;

(iii) Closely monitoring operational and financial results in accordance with
plans and budgets;

(iv) Putting adequate operational, planning and financial control systems in
place; and

(v) Managing the Group’s day to day business.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed 4 Independent Non-Executive Directors; and at least
one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. Each of the independent non-
executive Directors has made an annual confirmation in writing of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the
Company considers that all the independent non-executive Directors were
independent during 2015 since their respective date of appointment.

All Independent Non-Executive Directors are identified as such in all corporate
communications containing the names of the Directors by the Company.

Mr. Tang Wai Ting, Samson, the Chairman and an executive Director, is the
spouse of Ms. Chan Kai Hei, an executive Director. Save as otherwise
disclosed herein, there is no family or other material relationship among
members of the Board.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, should keep
abreast of their collective responsibilities as Directors and of the businesses
and activities of the Group. The Group also provides briefings and other
training to develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills, and
updates all Directors on the latest developments regarding the GEM Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and
to enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Directors provided their
training record to the Company in respect of their participation in training
activities such as attending seminars relevant to their duties and
responsibilities as directors of a listed company, particulars of which are as
follows:

materials relevant

FEEXRE

EREF(BHEBYIFNTES) BEREREZTRNAEAE
EXBRTHOHABEE - ARENSRAGRS LEMIT
Al ABELEHREREOMB LG WHAIRR EHARR
REMEREERENENERASBESRRSEHER
HERABR LR REN R FEEE AT RNEM

REBE-Z-RAF+-_A=+—-HILFE EERRF2HE
FREEERLEMARES ZBBRBENEINED (i
BT &) AR ARSI - FHEeT

Reading Attending the

seminar relevant
to the skill of the

to directors’ Attending the

duties and seminar provided Director’s
responsibilities by the Company position
HEERBERBE AN R R HFEESEN
B EAM R E M R WIFE HEEENHEE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Tang Wai Ting, Samson BEEEE 4 v v
Ms. Leung Wai Hing, Ella PEET L v 4 v
Mr. Mak Hing Keung, Thomas AEEH A v 4 v
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Kor Sing Mung, Michael Kor Sing Mung, Michael 5t 4
(appointed on 1 March 2016) (RZZE—X"FE=F—H
EZRE) N/A 38 F N/A 38 F N/A 38 F
Dr. Li Ying FEG+ v v v
Mr. Tse Yee Hin, Tony HFEF L v v v
Independent non-executive Directors B EH{TES
Ms. Chan Sze Man BREFEZ L v v v
Mr. Lee Wai Hung FEMESE v v v
Mr. Ng Ka Chung ERBELEE v v v
Ms. Eugenia Yang BTRZt 4 v v

28

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Tang Wai Ting Samson (“Mr. Tang”) is both the Chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company. In view of Mr. Tang is one of the co-
founders of the Group and has been operating and managing the Group since
2004, the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr.
Tang taking up both roles for effective management and business
development. The role of the Chairman is primarily responsible for managing
the Board, whereas the role of the chief executive officer is primarily
responsible for overseeing the various businesses of the Group. Their
respective roles and responsibilities are summarised as follows:

Responsibilities of the Chairman include: (i) leading the Board and ensuring
that the Board functions effectively and smoothly; (i) chairing the Board and
shareholder’s meetings; (iii) approving the agenda for each Board meeting,
taking into account, where appropriate, any matters proposed by the other
Directors and the company secretary of the Company for inclusion in the
agenda; (iv) ensuring that all Directors receive all relevant information prior to
each meeting and are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings; (v)
ensuring all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
and constructive manner; (vi) encouraging all Directors, including the
independent non-executive Directors, to actively participate in all Board and
Board committees meetings and promoting a culture of openness for the
Directors to share and voice their concerns on all matters during each
meeting; (vi) ensuring good corporate governance practices and procedures
are established and followed; and (viii) taking appropriate steps to provide
effective communication with shareholders and to ensure that shareholders’
view are communicated to the Board as a whole.

Responsibilities of the chief executive officer include: (i) implementing the
Group’s policy and strategies as set by the Board; (i) strategic planning of
different business and functions; (iii) closely monitoring operational and
financial results in accordance with plans and budgets; (iv) assuming full
accountability to the Board for all aspects of the Group’s operations and
performance; (v) maintaining ongoing dialogue with the Chairman and the
other Directors; (vi) developing and leading an effective executive team; (vii)
putting adequate operational, planning and financial control systems in place ;
and (viii) representing the Company and managing the Group’s day to day
business.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

All the Directors are appointed for an initial term of one or three year and
subject to retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election in accordance with
the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”). At each annual general
meeting, not less than one third of the Directors then in office shall retire and
every Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years.

All existing Executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors are
entitled to a fixed remuneration per month or fee per annum respectively. The
remuneration of each Director is subject to the annual review of the Board with
reference to his contribution in terms of time, effort and his expertise.

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / & EE $} & 2015

FERITHAEAR

BEEZAE(BEE]) BRARFEERITHREAE - HRE
EERKTEEARAPAZ — LB —ZZNFUR—ELE
RERAEE  EFERRELEREZMERATATR
BEREBRERER TEAKEZ&ENG - TF B
ZREEREEFE MOKEH - BATZETERAEKE
BER - MENAERBEMSAMNT :

IRMBARERE  ((FEEFS  BREFSEEULBIE
B WEFEFSRBERERZ  ((ILESEFSEEN
g TE(WER) EMESERARAMN A BMEEZEN
EREEARAZERE  (VEREBEENSSHANEED
MEMEN U ESERRERTSES LAREEENEN
VEREFSLFABEEIMEEZREENEE V)
SHERER(REBUFRTER) ER2EMEESFS
kEFZREeeH  RREAHMROXIL BEENEE
FEBRAAEEEDZEREHER  Vi)EREZIRFLEE
BRERRIRF  WELEE R (i) FEUEE SRERRA
BEBYHRRREMNESTSBERESR -

THRASNBERE  (MTESSETINAKERRLER
i (i) 1 SR R AR RO SRS R & ¢ (i) ARIRET & )R TR
g WYEELERMBEE (WVHAKEZERKREAN
PERTERNEEEREE  (VREFLHAGEFEFHE
(Vi) B R M BB MEMITEE ; (vi)HE A EE - 5T
REABEAEHIE © REVINRERAR A RERASE A BER -

ZEIRERES
MBEESERZTZNSFMA—R=F  EARBARFZ
SREAA(TEE D RERETSEHME - RERRBFKR
B PIR=ZDZ-NRIESAREINEBRESASLE
=FWERE—R -

AREIRTESERELIFNTESOEED HIKREREA
EMEREFRE - FEEZHEAREETSL2ERMAR
B - BOREKRRETEER -

29



Corporate Governance Report
TEERKRSE

Details of remuneration paid to each of the Directors during the year are
disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements.

All Directors are entitled to be reimbursed for reasonable expenses incurred
during the performance of their duties to the Company and are eligible for
share options under the share option scheme of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the board committees, namely, the audit
committee, the remuneration committee, the nomination committee and the
compliance committee, all with specific terms of reference clearly defining the
powers and responsibilities of the respective board committees. All board
committees are required by their terms of reference to report to the Board in
relation to their decisions, findings or recommendations.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”) with
written terms of reference that are in conformity of the requirements of the CG
Code which are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Audit Committee is currently composed of the 4 independent non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. Eugenia Yang, Ms. Chan Sze Man, Mr. Lee
Wai Hung and Mr. Ng Ka Chung, and chaired by Ms. Eugenia Yang, with all
members being independent non-executive Directors of the Company in full
compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, 4 audit committee meetings were
held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 25 of this annual report.

The functions of the Audit Committee include the following:

(i)  Appointment of the Company’s auditors
(@) to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal;

(b) to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

() to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the audit
and reporting obligations before the audit commences;
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to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor
to supply non-audit services. For this purpose, “external auditor”
includes any entity that is under common control, ownership or
management with the audit firm or any entity that a reasonable
and informed third party knowing all relevant information would
reasonably conclude to be part of the audit firm nationally or
internationally. The Audit Committee should report to the Board,
identifying and making recommendations on any matters where
action or improvement is needed; and

to discuss problems and reservations arising from the quarterly (if
any), interim and final audits any matters the external auditors
may wish to discuss (in the absence of the Board and other
employees of the Group at the discretion of the Audit Committee
where necessary)

(i) Review of the Company’s financial information

(@)

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and quarterly
reports, and to review significant financial reporting judgements
contained in them. In reviewing these reports before submission
to the Board, the Audit Committee should focus particularly on:
(1) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

) major judgmental areas;

Q) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(4)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

5) compliance with accounting standards;

6) compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

(7) any connected transactions and their impact on the
profitability of the Company;

8) items requiring disclosure; and

(9)  the cash flow position
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(iii)
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(®)

regarding point (a) above:

(1) members of the Committee should liaise with the Board
and senior management and the Audit Committee must
meet, at least twice a year, with the Company’s auditors;
and

(2)  the Audit Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in the
report and accounts, it should give due consideration to
any matters that have been raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function, compliance officer or auditors.

Overseeing of the Company’s financial reporting system
and internal control procedures

(@)

(®)

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems;

to discuss the internal control system with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have an
effective internal control system. This discussion should include
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigations findings on internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and to ensure that the
internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and
monitor its effectiveness;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the external auditor’'s management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to management about the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter;
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(h) to review arrangements employees of the Company can use, in

confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters and ensuring
that proper arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action;

to report to the Board on the matters in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report in
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules;

to report to the Board on the matters set out in the terms of
reference of the Audit Committee;

to establish a whistleblowing policy and system for employees
and those who deal with the Company (e.g. customers and
suppliers) to raise concerns, in confidence, with the audit
committee about possible improprieties in any matter related to
the Company; and

to review the disclosure in the Company’s interim and annual
reports regarding any regulatory deficiencies and remedial
actions.

Major accomplishments in 2015 comprised the following:

(@)

()

reviewed the financial statements for disclosure on a quarterly,
half-yearly and annually basis, where applicable;

reviewed the external auditor’s significant findings and
management’s response to the recommendation raised, if any;

reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system and the
adequacy of the accounting and financial reporting function of
the Group;

reviewed and approved the external auditor’s statutory audit
scope for 2015 and the letter of representation to be given by the
Board; and

considered and approved the 2015 external audit fees and
engagement letters.

The Group’s internal control system is reviewed regularly by management.
With the view of enhancing the Group’s internal control system, during the
year ended 31 December 2015, the Company had appointed its current
auditor, World Link CPA Limited, as independent consultant, to review the
Group’s internal control systems and recommend actions to improve our
internal controls.
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Based on the review, the Audit Committee is of the view that the Group’s
internal control system was effective and in compliance with the requirements
of the CG Code C.2.1 for the year ended 31 December 2015.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on
the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditors for
the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 and recommended approval to
the Board.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee has been amended by the
Board on 28 December 2015. Details of the above are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 28 December 2015.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee (‘Remuneration
Committee”) with written terms of reference in accordance with the
requirement of the CG Code. In accordance with provisions set out in the CG
Code are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee is currently composed of the 4 independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ng Ka Chung, Ms. Chan Sze Man, Mr.
Lee Wai Hung and Ms. Eugenia Yang, and chaired by Mr. Ng Ka Chung.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, 4 remuneration committee meetings
were held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 25 of this Report.

The role and functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management remuneration, of
which a significant portion of executive Director’s remuneration should
link rewards to corporate and individual performance, and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

(ii) to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

(iii) either (a) to determine with delegated responsibility the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management; or
(b) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management.
This should include benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment;

(iv)  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors;

(v) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment

and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the
Company and its subsidiaries;
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(vi)

(vii)

(i)

(%)

to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and is
otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal
or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they are
consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate;

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding
his own remuneration;

to advise the Company to disclose details of any remuneration payable
to members of senior management by band in its annual reports; and

to advise the shareholders of the Company with respect to any service
contracts of Directors that require shareholders’ approval under the
GEM Listing Rules.

Major accomplishments in 2015 comprised the following:

U

reviewed matters relating to the remuneration packages and
emoluments of Directors and senior management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) with written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are in conformity with the requirements of the CG
Code and are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Nomination Committee is currently composed of the 4 independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee Wai Hung, Ms. Eugenia Yang, Mr. Ng Ka
Chung and Ms. Chan Sze Man, and chaired by Mr. Lee Wai Hung.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, 4 Nomination Committee meetings
were held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 25 of this annual
report.

The role and functions of the Nomination Committee include:

U

(i)

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skKills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of,
individuals nominated for directorships;
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(iii) to receive nominations from shareholders or Directors when such are
tendered and to make recommendations to the Board on the candidacy
of the nominees, having regard to the Board’s compositional
requirements and suitability of the nominees;

(iv)  to assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors
and where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as an
independent non-executive Director at the general meeting, it should
set out in the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting why they
believe he should be elected and the reasons why they consider him to
be independent; and

(v) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment and re-
appointment of Directors, and succession planning for Directors in
particular the chairman and the chief executive.

Major accomplishments in 2015 comprised the following:

(i) recommended to the Board the appointment of Ms. Leung Wai Hing,
Ella, Mr. Mak Hing Keung and Mr. Kor Sing Mung, Michael of the
Company.

COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

The Company has established a compliance committee (“Compliance
Committee”) with written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Compliance Committee are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

The Compliance Committee is currently composed of the 4 independent non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. Eugenia Yang, Mr. Lee Wai Hung and Mr. Ng
Ka Chung, the company secretary Mr. Chou Chiu Ho and the Chairman Mr.
Tang Wai Ting Samson. The Compliance Committee is chaired by Ms.
Eugenia Yang.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, 4 Compliance Committee meetings
were held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 25 of this annual

report.

The role and functions of the Compliance Committee include:

i) to establish, maintain and approve the compliance system of the
Group;

(ii) to support and provide instruction to ensure that each department to
establish, execute and maintain its compliance system;

(iii) to approve the compliance manual and ensure it is updated;

(ivy  to organise education and training programmes on compliance,
including compliance seminars;
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(v) to monitor the status of the compliance system and discuss from time
to time with relevant management members on the compliance system
to ascertain what action, if any, is required for ongoing compliance;

(v to investigate compliance problems and take appropriate measures
when one arises (it may instruct the relevant department(s) to deal with
the problem depending on its nature);

(vl  to delegate the day-to-day implementation and monitoring of
compliance system to the compliance offer and company secretary;

(vii)  to review and monitor the ongoing compliance with the GEM Listing
Rules and relevant laws and regulations;

(ix)  to note any material deficiencies and take remedial actions if necessary
and at all times keep the Board abreast of any such actions and/or

developments; and

(x) to review the disclosures in the Company’s interim and annual reports
regarding any regulatory deficiencies and remedial actions.

Major accomplishments in 2015 comprised the following:

i) review the disclosures in the Company’s 2015 interim report regarding
any regulatory deficiencies and remedial actions, if any.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties set
out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board held 4 meetings for the purpose of reviewing the compliance of
corporate governance policies for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The duties of the Board include:

i

) to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(ii) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(iii) to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v) to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the CG Report.
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Major accomplishments in 2015 comprised the following:

(i) evaluated the Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and made appropriate amendments;

(ii) arranged the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management; and

(iii) reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the external
auditor World Link CPA Limited to the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 amounted to approximately HK$0.5 million and HK$0.1 million
respectively. The non-audit service represented service fees for tax compliance
and other review services.

The accounts for the year 2015 were audited by World Link CPA Limited
whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting.
The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that World Link CPA
Limited be re-appointed as the auditors of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of the Group’s
financial statements to give a true and fair view. The responsibilities of auditors
in respect of the financial statements are set out in the report of the auditors
forming part of this Report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to establish, maintain and review
the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls with a view to
ensuring that shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets are
safeguarded. This responsibility is primarily fulfilled on its behalf by the Audit
Committee. In the year under review, World Link CPA Limited, the current
auditor of the Company, as independent consultant, has reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group, covering material
financial and operational controls.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company improves its business and operational activities by identifying
the areas of significant business risks via a regular review and taking
appropriate measures to control and mitigate these risks. The management of
the Company reviews all significant control policies and procedures and
highlights all significant matters to the Board and Audit Committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY
For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company Secretary was Mr.
Chou Chiu Ho.
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Details of backgrounds and qualification of the Company Secretary are set out
in the “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

A written record had been received by the Company from Mr. Chou Chiu Ho
to confirm that he took not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 December 2015. The Company is of the view that
Mr. Chou has complied with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS TO CONVENE
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

In order to safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including
the election of individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration and voting.

The following procedures for shareholders of the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting are subject to the Articles, and the applicable
legislation and regulation, in particular the GEM Listing Rules:

(i) any one or more shareholders of the Company holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”), to require an extraordinary
general meeting (the “EGM”) to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition pursuant to
Article 64 of the Articles; and

(ii) if within 21 days of the deposit of the requisition, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such EGM, the requisitionist(s) himself/themselves
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Apart from sending email to info@cpit.com.hk, shareholders may send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them to the headquarter
and principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 5, 4/F,
Energy Plaza, No 92 Granville Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, by post or by fax to (852) 3525 1583, for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS

Pursuant to the Articles, Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may by
means of requisition convene an EGM following the procedures set out above.

INVESTOR RELATIONSHIP
During the year ended 31 December 2015, there was no significant change in
the Company’s memorandum and the Articles.
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The directors (“Directors”) of Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company’) present their report together with the audited financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

ADOPTION OF CHINESE NAME

With effect from 29 May 2015, the Company has adopted the Chinese name
“fE B KT X EBE TR AR QA as its dual foreign name pursuant to a
special resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company at an annual
general meeting held on 7 May 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities principal subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

The analysis of geographical locations of the Group’s customers for the year is
set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the state
of the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 59 to 111.

The state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2015 is set out in note
31 to the financial statements.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity” and
note 32 to the financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserve available for distribution as at 31 December 2015 was
approximately HK$50,111,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
and association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

THREE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last 3 financial years is set out on page 112 of the annual report.

PURCHASES, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2015.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to date of this report
were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Tang Wai Ting, Samson (Chairman)
Ms. Leung Wai Hing, Ella
(Appointed on 26 May 2015)
Mr. Mak Hing Keung, Thomas
(Appointed on 26 May 2015)
Mr. Chiu Chen Hsun
(Resigned on 26 May 2015)
Mr. Chan Kai Hei
(Resigned on 31 July 2015)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Kor Sing Mung, Michael (Vice-Chairman)
(Appointed on 1 March 2016)

Dr. LiYing

Mr. Tse Yee Hin, Tony

Independent non-executive Directors
Ms. Chan Sze Man

Mr. Lee Wai Hung

Mr. Ng Ka Chung

Ms. Eugenia Yang
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ROTATION OF DIRECTORS IN THE FORTHCOMING
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

In accordance with the Article 112 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Ms. Leung Wai Hing, Ella, Mr. Mak Hing Keung, Thomas and Mr. Kor Sing
Mung, Michael, shall hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election. Ms. Leung Wai Hing,
Ella, Mr. Mak Hing Keung, Thomas and Mr. Kor Sing Mung, Michael have
agreed to offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. Pursuant to the Article 108 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Ms. Chan Sze Man, Mr. Lee Wai Hung and Mr. Ng Ka
Chung shall retire from office as Directors by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. Ms. Chan Sze Man, Mr. Lee Wai Hung and Mr. Ng Ka
Chung, being eligible, have agreed to offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with our
Company for an initial term of three years with effect from the Listing Date,
which will continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’
prior notice in writing.

Dr. Li Ying and Mr. Tse Yee Hin, Tony has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of one year commencing on 6 October 2015 and
Mr. Kor Sing Mung, Michael has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of one year commencing on 1 March 2016, subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the next following annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company. The service agreements can be terminated by either party by giving
one month’s notice in writing.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors is appointed for an initial
term of three years commencing from their respective dates of appointment
and shall continue thereafter from year to year until terminated by one month’s
notice in writing served by either party on the other party.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, or any of
its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on page 18 to 22 of the annual report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals with highest
emoluments are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME
Details of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are set out in note 17 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2015, the interest and short position of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)), as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by directors of listed issuers as
referred to in Rules 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions
Ordinary shares of the Company

FEBR
AEBESHHBRBFWERGRERS 2 EY AR
RBEABIE

ARREEZHHOFNEEEL2EARRZLLERE - @
ARB AL BRTIZMRA B FHEE

ESRAEREHFALZHMH

EEROATmSTALZHMZMEHBHRRIERRM T
13 ¢

BIREAEE
AR ARE R B A RN B RRM 17 -

ESEREIRTRAEBREAQAIEMEEEE
Bkt - HRRORESTHERRLR

MNZZE-RAF+-A=*+—H ARAEEREIBITHASR
RARBRAEREEE (EEREHRHE G (#2531
BB EXVED B - R D RESHEARELCAR
BRI IRGIE B2 RFENARBELM - iRIEA
ERETMARANESABGEMAM ETETAERETRINMR
ERERMEANR R RAMERORAENT

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s

shares issued share

Name Capacity and nature of interest (note 1) capital
RHEE RARA R

=18 SO REREE (Mfat1) BREDL
Mr. Tang Wai Ting Samson (“Mr. Tang”) (note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 1,295,000,000 (L) 24.77%

SEEEE(BEE]D (HiF2) SEHEE R

Notes:

1. The letter “L” denotes a long position in the shareholder’s interest in the share
capital of the Company.

2. As CPIT Investments Limited is beneficially owned as to 99% by Mr. Tang and 1%
by Mrs. Tang, the spouse of Mr. Tang, Mr. Tang is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by CPIT Investments Limited under the SFO. Mrs. Tang, being the
spouse of Mr. Tang, is deemed to be interested in all the Shares that Mr. Tang is
interested in. Accordingly, each of Mr. Tang and Mrs. Tang is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by CPIT Investments Limited under the SFO.

The Company has been informed by its controlling shareholder, CPIT Investments
that it has entered into an agreement (the “SPA”) with Mr. Yang Wu on 17 August
2015, pursuant to which CPIT Investments agreed to sell (the “Sale”), subject to
the terms and conditions of the agreement, 1,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.0002
each in the share capital of the Company (representing approximately 19.13% of
the existing issued share capital of the Company) in consideration of Mr. Yang Wu
transferring its shareholding interests in a company incorporated in Hong Kong.
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Upon completion of the Sale, CPIT Investments and Mr. Yang Wu will own
1,295,000,000 shares (representing approximately 24.77% of the existing issued
share capital of the Company) and 1,000,000,000 shares (representing
approximately 19.13% of the existing issued share capital of the Company) of the
Company respectively and accordingly, CPIT Investments will cease to be a
controlling shareholder (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company and
Mr. Yang Wu will become a substantial shareholder (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) of the Company. However, the Company has been informed by CPIT
Investments that certain conditions precedent of the SPA have not yet been
fulfilled and the transactions in respect of the Sale have not yet been completed
as of 31 December 2015.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by directors of
listed issuers as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2015, the following persons (other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions
Ordinary shares of the Company

REEEFETMKEE - CPIT Investments & B T #55 BliEE A2
7]1,295,000,000 & i 17 (FHE R AR B REBHITRALN
24.77%) }.1,000,000,000 #% i 15 (A8 E R AR RIIRE B 1T
JEAR4719.13%) » #LCPIT Investments #§ "B AKX A RN E B
R MEFAKARABINEEZRE (FERAIERLETR
Bll) o $X10 + CPIT Investments 2 AR AR KR - RZZE—H
F+ZA=+—0 BEHEZETRRGEFEARENX M
HERIHZ B S I RATAK ©

B EXPIEEN  RZF-RE+-A=1+—08 #EX
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Percentage of

Number of  the Company’s
shares issued share
Name Capacity and nature of interest (note 1) capital
RHBEHE FLQREBITRAE
=18 S RESNE (Mtax1) ZBHBEDL
Ms. Chan Kai Hei (“Mrs. Tang”) (note 2) Interest of spouse 1,295,000,000 (L) 24.77%
PRiERE 2 ([BA D) (et 2) I (B
CPIT Investments Limited (note 2) (note 5) Beneficial owner 1,295,000,000 (L) 24.77%
CPIT Investments Limited (#fz#2) (K& 5) BB A
Mr. Kor Sing Mung Michael (note 3) (note 6) Interest of controlled corporation 1,205,000,000 (L) 23.0%
Kor Sing Mung Michael e 4 (f:£3) (f1716) SEHEE R
MK Investments Limited (note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 1,205,000,000 (L) 23.0%
MK Investments Limited (#47+ 3) SEHEE R
Seize Minute Limited (note 3) Beneficial owner 1,205,000,000 (L) 23.0%
Seize Minute Limited (/4771 3) BB A
Yang Wu (note 4) Beneficial owner 1,000,000,000 (L) 19.13%
B (Mfat4) =B A
Mak Jone Beneficial owner 326,560,000 (L) 6.25%
HER EniBA
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Notes:

The letter “L” denotes a long position in the shareholder’s interest in the share
capital of the Company.

As CPIT Investments Limited is beneficially owned as to 99% by Mr. Tang and 1%
by Mrs. Tang, the spouse of Mr. Tang, Mr. Tang is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by CPIT Investments Limited under the SFO. Mrs. Tang, being the
spouse of Mr. Tang, is deemed to be interested in all the Shares that Mr. Tang is
interested in. Accordingly, each of Mr. Tang and Mrs. Tang is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by CPIT Investments Limited under the SFO.

Seize Minute Limited is beneficially owned as to 100% by MK Investments
Limited. MK Investments Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Kor Sing Mung Michael,
Accordingly, Mr. Kor Sing Mung Michael, and MK Investments Limited are
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Seize Minute Limited under the
SFO.

The Company has been informed by its controlling shareholder, CPIT Investments
that it has entered into an agreement (the “SPA”) with Mr. Yang Wu on 17 August
2015, pursuant to which CPIT Investments agreed to sell (the “Sale”), subject to
the terms and conditions of the agreement, 1,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.0002
each in the share capital of the Company (representing approximately 19.13% of
the existing issued share capital of the Company) in consideration of Mr. Yang Wu
transferring its shareholding interests in a company incorporated in Hong Kong.

Upon completion of the Sale, CPIT Investments and Mr. Yang Wu will own
1,295,000,000 shares (representing approximately 24.77% of the existing issued
share capital of the Company) and 1,000,000,000 shares (representing
approximately 19.13% of the existing issued share capital of the Company) of the
Company respectively and accordingly, CPIT Investments will cease to be a
controlling shareholder (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company and
Mr. Yang Wu will become a substantial shareholder (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) of the Company. However, the Company has been informed by CPIT
Investments that certain conditions precedent of the SPA have not yet been
fulfilled and the transactions in respect of the Sale have not yet been completed
as of 31 December 2015.

The Company has been informed by its controlling shareholder, an aggregate of
25,000,000 shares of the Company (the “Pledged Shares”) held by CPIT
Investments have been pledged on 24 November 2015 in favour of an
independent third party (the “Lender”) as a security for a loan amount of
HK$31,250,000 provided by the Lender to CPIT Investments. As of 24 November
2015 and the date of this announcement, the Pledged Shares represent
approximately 0.48% of the issued share capital of the Company.

The Company has been notified by CPIT Investments that there is a dispute
between CPIT Investments and the Lender in respect of the Lender’s dealing with
the Pledged Shares. CPIT Investments has commenced legal proceedings in the
High Court of the Republic of Singapore on 12 January 2016 in respect of such
dispute.

On 1 March 2016, Mr. Kor Sing Mung, Michael has been appointed as non-
executive director and vice-chairman of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, no other interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the

SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is established to
recognize and acknowledge the contributions that Eligible Participants (as
defined below) have made or may make to the Group.

Eligible Participants

The Board may at its discretion grant right(s) to subscribe for Share(s)
pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme (the “Option”) to any of
the following persons (the “Eligible Participants”):

() any Director, employee or officer of any company in the Group who is
employed by any company in the Group (whether full time or part time)
(the “Employee”), consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent,
partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group or a company in which
the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company (the
“Affiliate”); or

(b) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or any discretionary
trust the discretionary objects of which include any Director, Employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser
of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate; or

(c) a company beneficially owned by any Director, Employee, consultant,
professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner, adviser of or contractor
to the Group or an Affiliate.

Exercise Price

The exercise price for any Share under the Share Option Scheme shall be a
price determined by the Board and notified to each Eligible Participants who
accepts the offer (the “Offer”) by the Company to that Eligible Participant to
accept an Option in accordance with the terms of this Scheme (the
“Grantee”, and where the context permits, include any person who is entitled
to any Option in consequent of the death of the original Grantee (being an
individual)) (in the letter containing the Offer of the grant of the Option) and
shall not be less than the highest of:

() the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant of the relevant Option, which
must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of
dealing in securities (the “Trading Day”);

(b) an amount equivalent to the average closing price of a Share as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five Trading
Days immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant Option;

and

(c) the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.
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Grant of Option and acceptance of Offer

An Offer shall be in such written form as the Board may from time to time
determine. Such Offer shall specify the exercise price, the exercise period and
the other relevant terms and conditions of the Option, and shall require the
Eligible Participant to undertake to hold the Option on the terms on which it is
to be granted and to be bound by the provisions of the Share Option Scheme
and all other conditions attaching to the Offer and shall remain open for
acceptance by the Eligible Participant concerned for a period of not less than
5 business days from the date of Offer, except for any Offer which is made
within the last 5 business days of the life of the Share Option Scheme, the
Offer shall remain open for acceptance on a business day by the Eligible
Participant concerned for a period of not longer than the remaining life of the
Share Option Scheme. An Offer cannot be accepted by an Eligible Participant
who ceases to be qualified as an Eligible Participant after the Offer has been
made. No Offer shall be capable of or open for acceptance after the expiry of
10 years from the adoption date (i.e. 20 June 2014) (the “Adoption Date”) of
the Share Option Scheme.

An Offer shall be deemed to have been accepted when the Company receives
the letter containing the offer duly signed by the Grantee together with a
remittance of HK$1.00 (or such other nominal sum in any currency as the
Board may determine) in favour of the Company as consideration for the grant
thereof. Such remittance shall in no circumstances be refundable. Once
accepted, the Option is granted as from the date on which it was offered to
the relevant Eligible Participant.

Maximum number of Shares

(@) Subject to paragraphs (b) to (d) below, the maximum number of Shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other schemes (excluding options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme in respect of
97,200,000 Shares) must not, in aggregate, exceed 500,000,000
Shares, being approximately 9.6% of the Shares in issue as at the date
of the Annual Report (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) unless approved
by the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) pursuant to
paragraph (c) below. Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit.
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(o)  Subject to paragraphs (c) and (d) below, the Scheme Mandate Limit
may be renewed by the Shareholders of the Company in general
meeting from time to time provided always that the Scheme Mandate
Limit so renewed must not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the
date of approval of such renewal by Shareholders of the Company in
general meeting. Upon such renewal, all options granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including those exercised, outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme or any other
share option schemes of the Company) prior to the approval of such
renewal shall not be counted for the purpose of calculating the Scheme
Mandate Limit as renewed. A circular must be sent to the Shareholders
of the Company containing such relevant information from time to time
as required by the GEM Listing Rules in connection with the general
meeting at which their approval is sought.

(c) Subject to paragraph (d) below, the Board may seek separate
Shareholders’ approval in general meeting to grant Options beyond the
Scheme Mandate Limit provided that the Options in excess of the
Scheme Mandate Limit are granted only to the Eligible Participants
specifically identified by the Company before such approval is sought
and the Company must issue a circular to the Shareholders of the
Company containing such relevant information from time to time as
required by the GEM Listing Rules in relation to any such proposed
grant to such Eligible Participants.

(d)  The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes involving the issue or grant of
options or similar rights over Shares or other securities by the Company
must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to
time. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the terms of the Share
Option Scheme, no options may be granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and the Share Option Scheme or any other share
option schemes of our Company if this will result in the said 30% limit
being exceeded.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
Options granted to each Eligible Participant (including both exercised and
outstanding Options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue. Any grant of further Options above this limit shall be subject to
the following requirements:

() approval of the Shareholders of the Company at general meeting, with
such Eligible Participant and its associates abstaining from voting;

(b) a circular in relation to the proposal for such further grant having been

sent by the Company to its Shareholders with such information from
time to time as required by the GEM Listing Rules;
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(c) the number and terms of the Options to be granted to such proposed
Eligible Participant shall be fixed before the Shareholders’ approval
mentioned in paragraph (a) above; and

(d) for the purpose of calculating the minimum exercise price for the Shares
in respect of the further Options proposed to be so granted, the date of
the Board meeting for proposing such grant of further Options shall be
taken as the date of offer of such Options.

Grant of Options to certain connected persons

Any grant of Options to any Director, chief executive, management
Shareholder or substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, must be approved by the independent non-executive
Directors (but excluding, for all purposes, any independent non-executive
Director who is a proposed Eligible Participant).

Where any grant of Options to a substantial Shareholder or an independent
non-executive Director or any of their respective associates would result in the
total number of the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
Options granted and to be granted (including Options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) to such person in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of the grant:

(a) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue; and

(b) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the Shares at
the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million,

such further grant of Options must be approved by the Shareholders of the
Company on a poll in a general meeting where all connected persons of the
Company must abstain from voting (except where such connected person(s)
intends to vote against the proposed grant of Option and his intention to do
s0 has been stated in the circular to be sent to the Company’s Shareholders).
The Company will send a circular to the Shareholders containing the
information required under the GEM Listing Rules.

Time of exercise of Option

An Option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may determine which shall
not exceed 10 years from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early
termination thereof.

Period of the Share Option Scheme

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Share Option Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing from the
Adoption Date and as at 31 December 2015, the remaining life of the Share
Option Scheme is approximately 8.5 years, after which no further Options will
be issued but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full
force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any
Options granted prior thereto or otherwise as may be required in accordance
with the provisions of the Share Option Scheme.
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The Board may impose such terms and conditions of the offer of grant either
on a case-by-case basis or generally as are not inconsistent with the Share
Option Scheme, including but not limited to the minimum period for such an
Option must be held, if applicable.

No Options were granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company under the
Share Option Scheme during the Review Period and there were no
outstanding Options under the Share Option Scheme as at 31 December
2015 and the date of the Annual Report.

PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

To recognize and motivate the contributions that Eligible Participants have
made or may make to the Group, the Company conditionally adopted the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme on 20 June 2014.

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is 97,200,000 shares, being approximately 1.9% of the Shares in
issue as at the date of the Annual Report. Mr. Chou Chiu Ho, the company
secretary of the Group, is the only participant under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and the said 97,200,000 Shares are also his maximum entitlement of
Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. Mr. Chou is entitled to
exercise the options granted to him (the “Pre-IPO Options”) under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme during the period commencing from the listing date
of the Company (the “Listing Date”) to 19 June 2016. There is no minimum
period for which the Pre-IPO Options must be held before they can be
exercised. A nominal consideration of HK$1 has been paid by Mr. Chou on
acceptance of the grant of the Pre-IPO Options. The exercise price for the
Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be equivalent to the
placing price of 30,000,000 new Shares of the Company which were listed on
18 July 2014. As the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was valid and effective
until 9:00 a.m. on the day (i.e. 17 July 2014) immediately prior to the Listing
Date, and after which no further options will be issued, there is no remaining
life of the scheme but the provisions of the scheme shall remain in full force
and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any options
granted prior thereto or otherwise as may be required in accordance with the
provisions of the scheme.

Details of the share options outstanding as at 31 December 2015 under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out below:
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For the year ended 31 December 2015, no share option was granted,
exercised, expired or lapsed under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and
there is no outstanding share option under the Share Option Scheme.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases attributable to
the major customers and suppliers respectively during the year are as follows:
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EEEH
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Sales Purchases

$HE 24

The largest customer SAEFP 25.1% N/A 6 A
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFEE 74.8% 20.3%
The largest supplier =AMLER N/A N3 20.3%
Five largest supplier in aggregate AR EEAE 11.7% 56.5%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had any interest in the Group'’s five largest customers or suppliers.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Company has been notified by CPIT Investments that there is a dispute
between CPIT Investments and the Lender in respect of the Lender’s dealing
with the Pledged Shares. CPIT Investments has commenced legal proceedings
in the High Court of the Republic of Singapore on 12 January 2016 in respect
of such dispute. Details of the above are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 14 January 2016.

The Company has approved the appointment of Mr. Kor Sing Mung, Michael
as non-executive Director and vice-chairman of the Company with effect from
1 March 2016. Details of the above are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 22 February 2016.
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On 11 November 2015, the Purchaser (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) and the Vendor entered into the Agreement, pursuant to which the
Purchaser has conditionally agreed to purchase and the Vendor has
conditionally agreed to sell the sale shareholdings, being 30% shareholdings
of the Target Company, for an aggregate consideration of HK$8.8 million
(subject to downward adjustment, if any), which shall be satisfied by the
allotment and issue of 3,776,824 new Shares of the Company at HK$2.33 per
Share to the Vendor. As the conditions for completion in the Agreement have
not been fulfilled or waived in writing by the Company on or before the long
stop date (i.e. 28 February 2016), and as the parties have not agreed upon
any time extension, the Agreement shall cease and determine whereupon the
provisions of the Agreement shall from such date have no further force and
effect and no party to the Agreement shall have any liability thereunder (without
prejudice to the rights of the parties in respect of any antecedent breaches).
Details of the above are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 11
November 2015 and 29 February 2016.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, none of the Directors, the
controlling shareholders of the Company and their respective close associates
(as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) as at 31 December 2015 had any
interest in any business which competes or is likely to compete, directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group or any other conflicts of interest with
the Group.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

In relation to the deed of non-competition dated 20 June 2014 (the “Deed of
Non-competition”) given by Mr. Tang Wai Ting Samson, Ms. Chan Kai Hei,
CPIT Investments Limited, Mr. Kor Sing Mung Michael, MK Investments
Limited and Seize Minute Limited (collectively the “Covenantors”) in favour of
the Company and set out in Prospectus, while the obligation of Mr. Kor Sing
Mung Michael, MK Investments Limited and Seize Minute Limited under the
Deed of Non-competition have ceased on 18 July 2014 in accordance with
the terms of the Deed of Non-competition when they and their associates
ceased to own 30% or more of the then issued share capital of the Company
directly or indirectly, the remaining Covenantors, being Mr. Tang Wai Ting
Samson, Ms. Chan Kai Hei and CPIT Investments Limited, made the annual
declaration on the compliance with the Deed of Non-competition in this annual
report as follows:

(@)

each of the Covenantor has not, and has procured that neither their
respective associates nor companies controlled by the Covenantors
(other than the members of the Group) would, directly or indirectly, be
interested in or engaged in any form of business which competes or is
likely to compete directly or indirectly with the Group’s business in any
area in which the Group carries or may carry on business (’Restricted
Activity”) from time to time; nor provide support in any form to persons
other than the members of the Group to engage in business that
constitute or may constitute direct or indirect competition with the
businesses that the Group is currently and from time to time carrying

on:

M

(i)

(iv)

in the event the Covenantors or any of their associates (other
than members of our Group) was given any business opportunity
that is or may involve direct or indirect competition with the
business of the Group, the Covenantors would have referred the
business opportunity to the Group and would have assisted the
Group to obtain such business opportunity in the terms being
offered to any of the Covenantors or their associates;

during the term of the Deed of Non-competition, each of the
Covenantors agrees to indemnify and keep indemnified the
Company and other members of the Group against any loss
suffered by the Company and/or other members of the Group
arising out of any breach of any of the Covenantor’s undertakings
under the Deed of Non-competition. No such loss was suffered
by the Group;

the Covenantors have allowed the independent non-executive
Directors to review, and the independent non-executive Directors
did review, on an annual basis, the compliance with the terms of
the Deed of Non-competition by the Covenantors, and the
options, pre-emptive rights or first rights of refusals provided by
the Covenantors on their existing or future competing business;

the matters reviewed by the independent non-executive Directors
relating to the compliance and enforcement of the Deed of Non-
competition (including without limitation the exercise of options or
first rights of refusal, if any) have been disclosed in this annual
report;
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v) the Covenantors have provided all information necessary for the
annual review by the independent non-executive Directors and
the enforcement of the Deed of Non-competition;

(v)  the Covenantors have made an annual declaration on compliance
with the Deed of Non-competition in this annual report; and
(viij  no business opportunity was referred to any members of the

Group by any Covenantors.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance report is set out on pages 23 to 39 of
this annual report.

INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As notified by the compliance adviser of the Company, Ample Capital Limited,
as at 31 December 2015, except for the compliance adviser agreement
entered into between the Company and Ample Capital Limited dated 9 April
2014, neither Ample Capital Limited or its directors, employees or close
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in relation to
the Group.

AUDITORS

On 7 January 2015, RSM Nelson Wheeler resigned as auditors of the
Company and World Link CPA Limited were appointed by the Directors to fill
the casual vacancy so arising. Save as disclosed above, there have been no
other changes of auditors since 1 January 2015. A resolution for
reappointment of World Link CPA Limited as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Tang Wai Ting, Samson
Chairman

Hong Kong
21 March 2016
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WORKPLACE QUALITY

Working Condition

The Group considers its staff to be its most valuable asset and treats them
fairly. In 2015, the Group introduced a new bonus system to reward
employees for outstanding performance. In line with its commitment to ensure
that employees share in its success, the Group also introduced various new
policies to enhance employee benefits.

Employee Development and Welfare

The Group’s remuneration package is structured with reference to the
individual performance, working experience and prevailing salary levels in the
market. In additional to basic salaries and mandatory provident fund (“MPF”),
staff benefits include a basic five-day working week, flexible leave
arrangement, medical coverage scheme and annual dinner.

Performance evaluations will be re-initiated each year. Recognising the value
in the skill and experience of our staff, the Group intends to adopt a policy that
any promotions will be considered internally first before hiring any outside staff.
It is the Group’s policy to select the most suitable candidate for appointment
to a higher rank based on merit, rather than on the seniority of the candidates.

Health and Safety

The Group makes the health and life safety of its employees in a close
attention focus. We provide its employee with flexible rest leave arrangement,
medical and hospital scheme. The Group also aware that the good working
environment for its employees with a safe and comfortable working condition
is very important. The Group has set work arrangement for typhoon and
rainstorm warning.

Environmental Protection

The Group’s business does not involve any nature resources emissions.
However, the Group execute practices that improve energy efficiency,
conserve resources for its operation and raise environmental awareness for
our employee. The key environmental impacts from the Group’s operations
related to energy and paper consumption. To achieve environment protection,
the Group encourage employees to shift to e-statement or scanning to reduce
our use of paper and greenhouse gas emissions; switch off all computers and
office equipment, electrical and air-conditioner at the end of each working day.

OPERATING PRACTICES

Anti-Corruption

To combat corruption and to govern conflicts of interest, unless with the
Group’s approval, Directors and employees are prohibited from accepting any
valuable items from co-workers, customers, suppliers or other stakeholders.
Unless with approval, senior management members are also prohibited from
engaging in any activities that involve a potential conflict of interest with the
Group or may do harm to the Group’s overall interests. Breaches are subject
to disciplinary actions, including the termination of employment contracts
where necessary.
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Various policies have also been formulated to accord with the Securities and
Futures Commission’s (“SFC”) Guideline on Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing, including the basic procedures for customer
identification and due diligence, suspicious transactions report and
recordkeeping. Ongoing staff training has also been carried out to ensure each
and every employee are fully aware of these policies.

For the Financial Year, there are no concluded legal cases concerning

corruption brought against the Group or our employees, nor there
commencement of such legal actions.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

Wanld Lint CPA Limited

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
MILLENNIUM PACIFIC GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Millennium Pacific
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 58 to 111, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / & EE $} & 2015
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itor’s Report
B R EN R E

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and EE%ME  BESMESZEZEEEREEDREATSENE
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. RE R o

OPINION =R

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view ~ E5R 4 @ REVBREACREZ SV BRELENEERA
of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015, and of the ~ Fiix BEBMHR-_T—HAF+-A=+—H 2%k
Group’s financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in % & BXEHEZBUEFEZEBERENESRE I
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been  BiZBEBATEH ZHERE L AHEE -

properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

World Link CPA Limited ELZRE (BB STMBEMERLT
Certified Public Accountants HESTET

Hong Kong, 21 March 2016 B ZT—RF=A=Z+—H

Fung Tze Wa BFE

Practising Certificate Number — P01138 MEFSERET — P01138
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

melEEkEMEEIRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHEZZ—RAF+-A=+—HLFE

2015 2014
—E-RF —ENF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Wizt FET FET
Turnover =3 8 67,098 237,226
Cost of sales SHER AR (61,054) (210,511)
Gross profit ER 6,044 26,715
Other income EH bl A 9 1,084 342
Selling and distribution costs SHE Ko SR A (3,321) (2,967)
Administrative expenses TERE (20,890) (23,422)
(Loss)/profit from operation EIE(BR)BR (17,083) 668
Finance costs M%ER 10 (424) (1,065)
Loss before tax BREBIATE 1B 11 (17,507) (397)
Income tax expense FriSfiF X 12 (19) (1,216)
Loss for the year attributable to the owners AATREEAEBLEERER
of the Company 14 (17,526) (1,613)
Other comprehensive income for the year, FABRBKEEMEZEEA :
net of tax:
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss: AR ER P EEBmAEE -
Exchange differences on translating HRE BN TG PR =5
foreign operations 548 8
Total comprehensive income for the year AATBEEAEBLER
attributable to the owners of the Company ZEWALLEE (16,978) (1,605)
Loss per share (cents) SRER GBIL) (Restated)
(E%1)
— Basic — HAK 16 (0.34) (0.04)
— Diluted — s 16 (0.34) (0.04)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R R

At 31 December 2015
RZZE—RF+=-A=+—H

2015 2014
—E—8fF —T—mFE
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
K et FE T FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENERE 18 4,792 5,612
Intangible assets mAE 19 219 -
5,011 5,612
Current assets RBEE
Inventories =g 20 22,734 15,778
Trade receivables FEURBR X 21 5,927 19,142
Prepayments and deposits TERFERES 22 5,556 5,918
Current tax assets BIEAF B & B 52 1,642
Bank and cash balances RITRIRSEH 23 32,985 54,272
67,254 96,752
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bills payables FERBRR R ENM 248 24 11,682 20,012
Other payables, deposits received and HEmEMRE  BRETER
accrued expenses s 4 25 5,895 8,185
Amount due to a director N —REERIE 26 6,275 -
Bank borrowings and overdrafts RITEERBEX 27 - 8,049
Finance lease payables R E M E T IR 28 158 147
Current tax liabilities BNEARI B B & = 580
24,010 36,973
Net current assets RBEEFE 43,244 59,779
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 48,255 65,391
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Finance lease payables RV TR E SRR 28 42 200
NET ASSETS EERE 48,213 65,191
Capital and reserves BRARFE
Share capital A% A 30 1,046 1,046
Reserves & 32 47,167 64,145
TOTAL EQUITY i 48,213 65,191

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March ~ HEBZE@R B —NE= A =+ — BittE RS
2016.

Tang Wai Ting, Samson Mak Hing Keung, Thomas

WEE FEE
Director Director
S 5%
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PN

For the year ended 31 December 2015

iy,

__,,.._._..-_,‘,-..-.-_.,a—o-—_ —

HE_T-—AF+_RA=+—BHItFE
Attributable to the owners of the Company
KRRERAEE
Foreign
currency Retained
Share Statutory Merger  translation Option profits/
Share premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  (accumulated Total Total
capital (ot 32(c)f)  (note 32(c)fi))  (note 32(c)fii))  (note 32(c)fiv)  (note 32(c)v)) losses) reserve equity
RBEER EERE ARG MERERE  BRERE  REEN/
W& (W) (W) (W) (Wiseh) (Wisew)  (RtER) B s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL FAL TAL TAL AL TAL AL TAL AL
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-RE-F-A - - 396 12,400 48 - 13472 26,686 26,686
Recognition of share-based TARDBEROFAH
payments (note 33) (H:253) - - - - - 327 - 327 37
Captalisation issue (note 30(2) BB (I 308) 700 (700) - - - - - (700) -
Placing of shares (note 30(b)) RERR (Hizson) 345 46,230 - - - - - 46,230 46,575
Share issue expenses BHBETEL - (6,867) - - - - - (6,867) (6867)
Exercise of share options TR 1 84 - - - (10) - 74 75
Totel comprenensive income for the year F A2 AN 2% - - - - 8 - (1,613 (1,605) (1,605)
Appropriations A - - 370 - - - (370) - -
Changes in equity for the year FRERED 1,046 38,747 370 - 8 317 (1983) 37,459 38,505
At 31 December 2014 and RZE-mE+ZA=1+-R
1 January 2015 RZZ-1E-A-H

Total comprehensive income and
changes in equity for the year

At 31 December 2015

*  Represents amount less than HK$1,000

FREEUOEEREERY

RZZ-RF+ZA=1-H

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / & B 3§45 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN s B2
mEHERER
For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-ZT—RAF+-A=+—HLFE

2015 2014
—E—AEF —T—mF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Wizt FExT FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& IZHBRELRKE
Loss before tax BRI% A& 18 (17,507) (397)
Adjustments for: AT EIEELFAE -
Interest income FLEWA (13) )
Depreciation e 1,455 1,420
Amortisation of intangible assets B A E#H 20 -
Finance costs HMsER 424 1,065
Allowance for inventories FEEE 2,794 1,710
Reversal of allowance for inventories GFERERED - (1,026)
Equity-settled share-based payments DA G5 E AR D AL
(NES - 327
Operating (loss)/profit before working capital changes &8 & & #BhATAL & (E518)
R (12,827) 3,088
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEEMm),w (10,615) 9,317
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables FEMRBR TR (45 0) 14,629 (6,553)
Increase/(decrease) in prepayments and R RERIES
deposits #m/ Crd) (199) 4,638
Decrease in trade and bills payables FEAST BR R M PR A R 40k (8,063) (14,862)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables, HibEMKIE  BWET© RIE
deposits received and accrued expenses FTEB CRD), 18N (1,857) 1,138
Cash used in operations KEAES (18,932) (3,234)
Finance lease charges paid EXfREREER (21) (31
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded/(paid) BRE(B) BEFIEH 1,592 (2,811)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid B R EMEH (595) (1,302)
Interest paid B AHE (403) (1,034)
Net cash used in operating activities RS FTRIR S FEE (18,359) (8,412)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZTHHESRE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BAYE  BEM&RE (812) (81)
Purchases of intangible assets BARLEE (239) -
Decrease in pledged bank deposits EHEIRIRITFEROR LD = 10,503
Interest received B2 HFILE 13 11
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities BEES (A FisHs
JRER (1,038) 10,433
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHEZZ—RAF+-A=+—HLFE

2015 2014
—ZE—hfF —E—mF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Wizt FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ®EZEBHRER

(Repayments)/inception of bank loans (f88) SERITER (3,749) 3,786
Repayments of finance lease payables EEmEHEENE (147) (137)
Advanced from a director EEF 6,275 777
Repayment to a corporate shareholder BT R RARERBR = (2,793)
Import/export loans raised BEEMNE HOEXR 1,311 11,258
Repayments of import/export loans BEE  HNnE® (1,311) (11,258)
Proceeds from placing of shares fid & A% 10 Fr 18 708 30(b) - 46,575

Expenses incurred in connection with placing MEERNDEE A

of shares - (6,867)
Proceeds from exercise of share options TIPS IE = 75
Net cash from financing activities MEEESIRE FRE 2,379 41,416
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE INCASHAND B&RESZEY (HD)

CASH EQUIVALENTS # 0B AR (17,018) 43,437
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNEE ME SR B B 2 R (10) 1
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FEYRERBESEEY

BEGINNING OF YEAR 50,013 6,575
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRESRESZEEY

END OF YEAR 32,985 50,013
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HREeRHALZEYIF
Bank and cash balances RITMIREEH 23 32,985 54,272
Bank overdrafts RITBEZ 27 = (4,259)

32,985 50,013
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 3R R BT

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-ZT—RAF+-A=+—HLFE

1.

64

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempt
company with limited liability on 10 September 2013 under the
Company Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman lIslands. The address of its registered office is Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
Cayman lIslands. The address of its principal place of business is
located at B3 YuCan Industrial Park, Lanzhu West Road, Export
Processing Zone, Pingshan New District, Shenzhen, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Company’s shares are listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 18 July 2014 (the “Listing”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which in collective term includes all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

—RER

RAARRZZE—Z=ZFNATARBEREHESRRNESE
RE(—NAR—FEZRERE  KEERIERER
EHESAMATA—FREREBERAR - S
Ji2 & Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands o £ = 2 & # i
bt A EE A RSB (TR E ) RN 1L
EHEAOMTEFETEAREIZEEBIR - RARZ
BthE —T—NFEATN\BRREBHERSE
PRARI([EEZAT]) BIZER (TRIZEMR ) Ef ([ ki l) -

AABREFEERBRAR - AHBEARNEZERLH
BN RAM L34 -

mRERE
HEGAMBHRRCRETEGFMH2G(HES
FEAE ) BHANERETBREEN(EENBHR
S G AFARREMEERZEEM B RS
R FEEEA(EFBEEL ] LB LE
BRREFRERE - IFREPHRETTAER
FrelERES EmRA(TAIZER EmRA]) 2@
WRIEXLBBRBGHZWEBERE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 3 2% MY =

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHEZZ—RAF+-A=+—HLFE

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
AND REQUIREMENTS

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a basis
consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the 2014
consolidated financial statements. The adoption of the new and revised
HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and effective for its accounting
year beginning on 1 January 2015 had no significant effects on the
results and financial position of the Group for the current and prior

years.

(@)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs
The following standards have been adopted by the Group for the
first time for its accounting year beginning on 1 January 2015:

Amendment to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle)

The amendment clarifies how the gross carrying amount and the
accumulated depreciation/amortisation are treated where an
entity uses the revaluation model. As the Group does not use the
revaluation model, there was no effect on its consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 19, Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

The amendments clarify the requirements that relate to how
contributions from employees or third parties that are linked to
service should be attributed to periods of service. In particular,
contributions that are independent of the number of years of
service can be recognised as a reduction in the service cost in
the period in which the related service is rendered (instead of
attributing them to the periods of service). As the Group has no
post-employment benefit plans requiring employees or third
parties to meet some of the cost of the plan, the amendments
had no effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendment to HKAS 24 (Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle)

The amendment clarifies how payments to entities providing key
management personnel services are to be disclosed. This
amendment had no effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / & EE $} & 2015
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ER R AL

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-ZT—RAF+-A=+—HLFE

3.

66

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND
REQUIREMENTS (continued)

(@)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (continued)
Amendment to HKAS 40 (Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle)

The amendment clarifies the application of HKFRS 3 and HKAS
40 in respect of acquisitions of investment property. HKAS 40
assists preparers to distinguish between investment property and
owner-occupied property, then HKFRS 3 helps them to
determine whether the acquisition of an investment property is a
business combination. The amendment had no effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendment to HKFRS 3 (Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle)

The amendment clarifies that HKFRS 3 excludes from its scope
the accounting for the formation of any joint arrangement in the
financial statements of the joint arrangement itself. This had no
effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendment to HKFRS 8 (Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle)

The amendment requires disclosure of the judgements made by
management in applying the aggregation criteria to operating
segments, and clarifies that reconciliations of the total of the
reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets are required
only if the segment assets are reported regularly. These
clarifications had no effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Amendment to HKFRS 13 (Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle)

The amendment clarifies that the portfolio exception in HKFRS
13 — allowing an entity to measure the fair value of a group of
financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis — applies to
all contracts (including non-financial) within the scope of HKAS
39/HKFRS 9. This had no effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 3 2% MY =

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHEZZ—RAF+-A=+—HLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND

REQUIREMENTS (continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective
The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2015. The directors anticipate that the new
and revised HKFRSs will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements when they become effective. The Group is in
the process of assessing, where applicable, the potential effect

of all new and revised HKFRSs that will be effective in future
periods but is not yet in a position to state whether these new
and revised HKFRSs would have a material impact on its financial

performance and financial position.

List of new and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15
Amendments to HKFRS 11
Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS

16 and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial Instruments'
Regulatory Deferral Accounts?
Revenue from Contracts
with Customers'
Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations®
Disclosure Initiative®
Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation®
Agriculture: Bearer Plants®

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture*

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception®

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle®
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-ZT—RAF+-A=+—HLFE

3.

68

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND
REQUIREMENTS (continued)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
with earlier application permitted.
2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on
or after 1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016,
with earlier application permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined. Early adoption is permitted.

() New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
The requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) came into
operation during the financial year. As a result, there are changes
to presentation and disclosures of certain information in the
consolidated financial statements.

(d) Amendments to the GEM Listing Rules
The Company has adopted the amendments to Chapter 18 of
the GEM Listing Rules in relation to the disclosure of financial
information with reference to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the current year. The main impact
on the financial statements is on the presentation and disclosures
of certain information in the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 5 to the financial statements.

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting year as that of the Company.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties, to
determine whether it has control. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise
that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains and continue to be consolidated until the date when such
control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a
loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value
of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that subsidiary determined on the date
when control is lost; and (ii) the carrying amount of the
Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any
remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any related
accumulated amounts in other comprehensive income.

All intragroup transactions, balances, income and expenses and
profits and losses are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.

In the Company’s statement of financial position the investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses. The
carrying amount of the investment is reduced to its recoverable
amount on an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The results of a subsidiary are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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70

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency translation

(b)

U

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”),
which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(i)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the
Company’s presentation currency are translated into the
Company’s presentation currency as follows:

Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position;

Income and expenses for each statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates on
the transaction dates); and

All resulting exchange differences are recognised in
the foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

(c) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in the
profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

()

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their costs less accumulated
impairment losses from the date on which they are available for
use and after taking account their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal
residual value and useful lives are as follows:
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Furniture and fixture RMREE 0-10% 5 years
Leasehold improvement HEWEEE 0% 4 years £
Motor vehicle R 0-10% 5 years F
Mould HA 0-10% 5 years &
Office equipment PN 0-10% 5 years &
Plant and machinery R K i 2% 0-10% 10 years 4

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. The gain or loss on
disposal of property, plant and equipment is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss in the year in
which the item is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired are measured on initial recognition at
cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be
whether finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Cost of acquired application software are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis
over the commercial lives of the underlying software not
exceeding five years, commencing from the date when the
products are put into commercial production.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(€

U]

(9)

(h)

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
operating leases. Lease payments (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals are recognised as
expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as finance
leases. At the commencement of the lease term, a finance lease
is capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and
the present value of the minimum lease payments, each
determined at the inception of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
statement of financial position as finance lease payable. Finance
charges which represent the difference between the total leasing
commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired, are
allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same as owned
assets over the shorter of the lease term and their estimated
useful lives.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the year in which it is incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted-average method.
Costs comprise all costs of purchase and, where applicable, cost
of conversion and other costs that have been incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. When
inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised in the profit or loss in the period of write-down or loss
occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories recognised as an increment in the amount of
inventories and recognised in the profit or loss in the period in
which the reversal occurs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

V)

0

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit
or loss.

Loans and other receivables

Loans and other receivables including trade and other receivables
and bank and cash balances are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market and are not held for trading are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, except where receivables are
interest-free loans and without any fixed repayment term or the
effect of discounting would be insignificant. In such case, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition over the period to maturity. Gains or
losses arising from derecognition, impairment or through
amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss. An
allowance for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group wiill
not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of receivables. The amount of the allowance is the
difference between the receivables’ carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. The amount
of the allowance is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods and
recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the receivables’
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the
restriction that the carrying amount of the receivables at the date
the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

V)

(m)

(n)

(0)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are
also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out
below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(P)

(@

76

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenues from the sales of manufactured products and trading
of electronic accessories are recognised on the transfer of
significant risks and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the goods are delivered and the
title has passed to the customers.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
method.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

(ii) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and
employees are calculated as a percentage of employees’
basic salaries. The retirement benefit scheme cost
charged to profit or loss represents contributions payable
by the Group to the funds.

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the
dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of
termination benefits.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U

()

(t)

Share-based payments
The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
employees and others who providing similar services.

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are
measured at fair value (excluding the effect of non-market based
vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of grant.
The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled
share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that
will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market-
based vesting conditions, with a corresponding increase in a
reserve within equity.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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4.

78

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(v) Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

U

(i)

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Company or of a parent of the Company.

(B)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

M

(i)

(i)

(V)

(V)

(vil)

The entity and the Company are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to
the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A).

A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).
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80

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

()

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets except
inventories and receivables to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment
loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of amortisation or
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(y) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting
period or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not
appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in the financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements when material.

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

(@) Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets (other than goodwill)
The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual values
and related depreciation/amortisation charges for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets of similar nature and functions. The Group will
revise the depreciation/amortisation charges where useful lives
and residual values are different to those previously estimated, or
it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives
may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could
result in a change in depreciable/amortisable lives of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets and
therefore depreciation/amortisation in the future periods.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets as at 31 December 2015 were approximately
HK$4,792,000 and HK$219,000 respectively (2014:
HK$5,612,000 and nil respectively).

(b)  Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based on the
ageing and estimated net realisable value of inventories. The
assessment of the allowance amount involves judgement and
estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of inventories and allowance charge/write-back in the
period in which such estimate has been changed. Allowance for
slow-moving inventories of approximately HK$2,794,000 (2014:
HK$1,710,000) was made for the year ended 31 December
2015.
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82

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

©

Income taxes

The Group is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”). Significant estimates are required
in determining the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign

currency risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s

overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of

financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance.

(@)

Foreign currency risk

The functional currency of the Group’s entities are principally
denominated in either HK$ or Renminbi (‘RMB”). The Group has
certain exposure to foreign currency risk as some of its business
transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in currencies
other than its functional currency such as United States dollars
(“US$"). The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency transactions, assets
and liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise. Set out below the
analysis the Group’s foreign currency risk:

5. EBERAERFEMT (HE)

flET A REE M EERR (8)

)  HrE
AEBEBRNBENEGHLTEREMRER
(TREMER) ] - EEEMSHEFHRFEZM
HEBRMEE < FFZRH R ER—REBBE
R R TRIRR VB T HEE - EREFRM
BEBRERTRARNTEENERE - ZE
B e R BT SRS RN IR
B e

6. MEBERER
AEBNER DD EERZHMBRR : SMNERR - 5
ERkE - MERBERBDESRRE - AEEBERR
EEFE IR RIS TR TN LR EER
PUHAREERBRANTHFZE

(@) SRR
AEBBENNEER T ZUBTHARKE
(TAR® DEHE - AEEmEERE TINERR -
TIHREETEBRS  BEMBEUAEE
ReEREASNO G’ (e (15T ]))5HE -
AEBBAERINER S - EERBESIESN
BEINBR - ARER T EEEINER R
Mg EREHRREBEMERIMNERR -
TREIIANEE 2 INERBR DT

Increase/

Functional (decrease) in
currency consolidated
strengthened/ loss
(weakened) by after tax

HEEE FEBRER
FE(BZHE) 2, (L)

HK$’000

THET

Year ended 31 December 2015 E-_E-—HRFE+-A=+—BHLEE 5%/(5%) (451)/451Note) (D)
Year ended 31 December 2014 HE_ZT-—MF+_A=+—HIFE 5%/(5%)  (964)/964Mot (i)

Note: This is mainly a result of foreign exchange gain/(loss) on bank
deposits, trade and other receivables, trade and bills payables and
other payables denominated in US$.
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

()

()

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, deposits and bank
balances included in the consolidated statement of financial
position represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in relation to its financial assets.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.

The credit quality of the counterparties in respect of trade and
other receivables is assessed by taking into account their
financial position, credit history and other factors. Given the
constant repayment history, the directors are of the opinion that
the risk of default by these counterparties is low.

The credit risk on bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies and large state-controlled
banks in the PRC.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s finance lease payables bear interests at fixed
interest rates and therefore are subject to fair value interest rate
risks.

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its bank
deposits. These bank deposits bear interests at floating rates
varied with the then prevailing market condition.

Except as stated above, the Group does not have other
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities at the end of
reporting period, its income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.

Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at
the end of each of the year of the Group’s bank borrowings and
overdrafts, amount due to a director, finance lease payables and
other financial liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the reporting date) and
the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.
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84

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d)

6. MBEREER)

Liquidity risk (continued) (d REBESER(E)
The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities based on AEEREBEARAARURREREAEN A
contractual undiscounted cash flow is as follows: B EBRERITOT :
Less than Between 1 Between 2
On demand 1 year and 2 years and 5 years
RER —FUT —-ZME MELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE-EF+ZA=1+-H
Trade and bills payables LS = 11,682 - -
Other payables, deposits received and HMEMNZIE  2WET 2 R
accrued expenses [ E - 5,895 - -
Amount due to a director ER—REEFE 6,275 - - -
Finance lease payables BEMERMNFE = 167 43 =
At 31 December 2014 R-EB-ME+=-A=+-H
Trade and bills payables BRI REMNEZE - 20,012 - -
Other payables, deposits received and HiEMAFE  BMETE R
accrued expenses [ ER - 8,185 - -
Finance lease payables BEMERMNTE - 168 210 -
Bank borrowings and overdrafts RITEERES - 8,049 - -
Categories of financial instruments at 31 December €@ Rt=A=t+t-BZE&WMIANEH
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TFE T FHET
Financial assets: SREE
Loan and receivables B FEMGRTE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (PRESERSEED) 39,965 74,112
Financial liabilities: EHMAE:
Financial liabilities at amortised costs REBHRATIROCREE 19,438 31,228

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and

financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of

financial position approximate their respective fair values.

(f)
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
those described in note 4 to the financial statements.

Operating segment information

The Group engaged in the single type business of research,
development, manufacturing and trading of electronic devices.
Accordingly, no operating segment information is presented.

Geographical information
Non-current assets are not presented in the geographical information
as they are all located in the PRC.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers is
presented based on the geographical location as follows:

7 EER
1 D BT TR BB R SRR M A 4 SRR
— 8-

mEDHER
AEBUWEE - RAUEBETREOTE  HERS
Z o B - HE2FIE =D HER -

& &
MRERBEESMNHE - AW EELRERN2
FIBERBEE -

BRAASER MR P WS ERRBIA T L
B2

2015 2014

—E—hHF —T—mF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Taiwan =y 16,847 100,695
The Netherlands G| 11,270 -
United Kingdom B 8,919 31,160
Hong Kong & 9,465 50,763
Others HAh 20,597 54,608
67,098 237,226

Information about major customers

The Group’s customer base included four (2014: two) customers with
whom transactions have exceeded 10% of its revenue during the year
is set out as below:

FREREFNER
RENEREHERBBAEEKZI10% X HNAEH
mEagEF (ZF—1E : M) #®HIWT :

2015 2014
—E—8F —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Customer A ZEA 16,847 94,885
Customer B ZFEB 11,270 -
Customer C ZEC 8,919 31,160
Customer D ZED 7,851 -
44,887 126,045
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8. TURNOVER

Turnover represents the invoiced values of goods sold, after allowances
for returns and discounts. An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the

year is as follows:

EETERREERTERAEERNERERE - K
SEFRMNEEESTNT

2015 2014
—E-—hF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Sales of manufactured products SHE RN E D 56,150 214,654

Sales on trading of electronic products, BFEM BUHERRMEESHEE
accessories and raw materials 10,948 22,572
67,098 237,226

9. OTHER INCOME 9. HaulgA
2015 2014
—E-RF ZE—PUF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Gain on sales of scrap SHERE UL A 68 281
Government subsidies BRAT R R 465 -
Interest income FEHA 13 11
Others Hi 538 50
1,084 342
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. MK EHA

2015 2014
—E-FHE —T—UF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest on bank loans IRITERF S 133 165
Interest on bank overdrafts IRITBEXZFE 161 561
Interest on import/export loans & HOERF A 109 308
Finance lease charges REHEER 21 31
424 1,065
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11.

LOSS BEFORE TAX 11. BRBAIEE
The Group’s loss before tax is stated after charging/(crediting) the AREEBRBRIEIE DGR (GEA) LT EEES
following: & -
2014
—EmF
Note HK$'000
Bt 5t FAET
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 19) &R & EE#4# (K13 19) -
Depreciation of property, plant and WE - BERREITE
equipment (note 18) (K17 18) (@) 1,420
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) 8 TH A (BIFEEHS) (b)
— Salaries, bonus and allowances — ¥E - TEAL KRR 14,528
— Equity-settled share-based payments — — LARERR & E DARRD A ERE R 327
— Retirement benefits scheme contributions — — 3R YR7& FI| 5+ & 2k 1,785
16,640
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 210,511
Foreign exchange loss SNEE5 R 976
Operating lease charges on premises HEEEHEER © 2,945
Auditors’ remuneration T SR 27 B 480
Allowance for inventories FERE 1,710
Reversal of allowance for inventories FERBERLD GEABESRAE)
(included in cost of sales) (1,026)
Notes: ffaE
(@)  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment of approximately @ AREE_F-HFT_A=T-BIEFE WX K
HK$433,000 (2014: HK$1,012,000) for the year ended 31 December B R i 8 4T B #) /433,000 7T( = T — M 4F
2015 is included in cost of sales. 1,012,0007870) * st ASHERA
()  Staff costs of approximately HK$4,325,000 (2014: HK$8,352,000) for the () REZEZT-—AF+ZA=1t—RLFE BIKA
year ended 31 December 2015 is included in cost of sales. #)7%4,326,00078 7T (—F — M4 : 8,352,000/ 7T) -
FTASHER A -
(©) Operating lease charges of approximately HK541,000 (2014: (© REZE_F-AF+-A=1T—RItFE L2HE
HK$1,706,000) for the year ended 31 December 2015 is included in cost # M 49 /541,0007 7T (= F — M 4 : 1,706,00078
of sales. To) AT ABERA
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12, FISHiMX
2015 2014
—EB-HF —E—MF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FHIT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNERRETE — EBFEH

Provision for the year FREE = 488
(Over)/under-provision in prior years RBEFE GBERE) BEIR 2 2
@ 490

Current tax — PRC EIT ENEAREIE — B PAISH
Provision for the year FREE - 665
Under-provision in prior years RBEFERETR 21 61
21 726
Total tax charge for the year FABIERS B3 19 1,216

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required as the Group’s Hong
Kong subsidiaries have no assessable profit for the year. Hong Kong
Profits Tax for the year ended 31 December 2014 was provided at
16.5% based on the assessable profits for that year.

No PRC EIT is required as the Group’s PRC subsidiaries did not
generate any assessable profit for the year. PRC EIT for the year ended
31 December 2014 was calculated at 15% on the assessable profits for
that year.

On 26 December 2014, Central Pacific Int Technology Limited (“CPIT”),
a Company’s PRC subsidiary, was granted status of High and New
Technology Enterprise and entitled to preferential EIT rate of 15% from
1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016 provided CPIT continues
engaged in activities which meet the criteria of being a High and New
Technology Enterprise pursuant to No. 28 of the EIT Law of the PRC
(“EIT Law”) and No. 93 of the Regulation on the Implementation of the
EIT Law promulgated by the State Council of the PRC.

HRAEBEENE R RNFENEERTET - &
BARBATGEHERE HE_T—NF+=A
=T —RIEFEZBEENERIREZFERNERT
i F 12 16.5% 1 B o

P A AN 2 3 v (B T BB 8 R 6 AL AR E A M FE R
wH - MERESMTEAEMEN - BE-T—NEF
TZA=+—BUEFEZPBEMEMREBIREZST
EHERTOEFIZ15%HE

RZZE—WFE+-AZ+XE  FEMNEFCRID
BRAF(THEMNEF] AR 2 hBEHNBAR)E
R EEAR A-F-NF-A—RE-ZF
—ARFETZA=Z+ - RERRI%ZBELEMS
BEGMBEMREE AR P EMNEFRELE
756 B B B B AR A0 B R PR IS BUE ([ R R PRIEHE
D) B 28 IR R EMEBUREHEIGHISE 93 f 2 %
R ER o
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 12, FISHim (&)
The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the product of ERE S BRI AIEBE QRN AEEFSHER
loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of the $Eg¥¢g§gnr :
Group is as follows:
2015 2014
—E-HF —PueE
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHT
Loss before tax KR AT ES 1B (17,507) (397)
Tax at the domestic tax rate of 16.5% AR E16.5%

(2014: 16.5%) (ZZ—MF : 16.5%) s T ERFHIA (2,889) (66)
Tax effect of preferential tax rate BB 2 BgE 754 (518)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable BERBMA TSR ?v 2 (39) (169)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible TENRBHYORETE 1,672 1,295
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised MR b =BT S 2 (52) (15)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERBR BB ENRGTE 1,216 175
Under-provision in prior years RBTFERETR 19 63
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries WE AR TRBEENTE (662) 451
Income tax expense for the year FERNREFHESL 19 1,216

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EERESMS
The emoluments of each director were as follows: BEEMSWT -
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE-_E—hAFE+-HA=+—HLEE
Retirement
Salaries and  benefits scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total
e FEREE BRI EMR k)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
TER TER TET TERT
Executive directors HITESE
Tang Wai Ting, Samson HEE - 240 13 253
Chan Kai Hei (i) PR 1R - 140 8 148
Chiu Chen Hsun (i) ERA B 48 = = 48
Leung Wai Hing (ii) REEE - 294 11 305
Mak Hing Keung (i) IR - 216 11 227
Non-executive directors kHITES
Li Ying Z [ 300 - - 300
Tse Yee Hin, Tony FFE 300 - - 300
Independent non-executive directors BV IEHITEE
Chan Sze Man FR 560 120 - - 120
Lee Wai Hung EX Y 120 - - 120
Ng Ka Chung (e 120 - - 120
Eugenia Yang BT 120 - - 120
1,128 890 43 2,061
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEREEMS (&)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_Z-—NF+-_A=+—HILFE
Retirement
Salaries and benefits scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total
e HERER  RINEREEMET ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT THT TER THER
Executive directors HITES
Tang Wai Ting, Samson HWEE - 240 18 258
Chan Kai Hei (i) B 120 () - 240 18 258
Chiu Chen Hsun (i) itz a==(i)} 60 - - 60
Non-executive directors FHITES
Li Ying FE 71 - - 71
Tse Yee Hin, Tony HFE 71 - - 71
Independent non-executive BIUFHTES
directors
Chan Sze Man PREFE 60 - - 60
Lee Wai Hung Ny 60 - - 60
Ng Ka Chung HHRE 60 - - 60
Eugenia Yang 15 7T & 60 - - 60
442 480 36 958
Notes: Bt -

(0] Resigned on 31 July 2015

(i) Resigned on 26 May 2015

(iii) Appointed on 26 May 2015. Salaries and allowances of approximately
HK$181,000 paid to Ms. Leung Wai Hing before her appointment as

director had not included in the 2015 emolument analysis.

(iv) Appointed on 26 May 2015

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments during the year.

920

]

(i)

)

RZF—AFEtA—BEE

R-E—RAFRAAZTAET

R-ZE-—RFREA-+ BEZE - —T—0FHFM
DPAETBEREER T REAENOFHE MR

A54)181,000 87T °

R-E—RAFRA-TBAEZT

RER - EERRELRBREEMMSOZHE -
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EERESHE(E)
(continued)
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year included 2 RERN AEBRUSSTMATRE2R(Z2
(2014 2) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis —WF:28)EF Al E LM 2FOITFR
presented above. The emoluments of the remaining 3 (2014: 3) Mo HM3HA(ZZTE—NF : 38) EARNEE 5 BIH
individuals are set out below respectively: FILATR -
2015 2014
—E-—ARF —E—E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Basic salaries and allowances EARFE KRB, 1,272 962
Equity-settled share-based payments VAR #E 45 B AR D BETE K - 327
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RINEFET &R 54 44
1,326 1,333
The emoluments fell within the following band: BRTIIREEOMSE

Number of individuals

AE
2015 2014
—E2-HF —T—PF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 % 7T 3 3
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the RER - AEEBEAEAERRERHMALIM
directors or the highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or EARTBH < 1 7% I B 50 B 7N SR (14 ) B2 1 R B G

upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. e -

14. LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS 14. AATERABEFAER

OF THE COMPANY
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company was dealt with FARABEE ARGEERRARRHBHRERIES
in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of loss of BRIE - EIR# /513,144,000 T (ZF — 4 : B
approximately HK$13,144,000 (2014: loss HK$8,522,000). 8,622,000/87T) °

15. DIVIDEND 15. RE
No dividend had been paid or declared by the Company during the year ARRFARERNREREMBES (ZFE—HF -
(2014: Nil). ;) o
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16. LOSS PER SHARE

92

(@

(b)

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the following:

16.

BRER
BREFBFRZFEABENT :

(a)

2015 2014
—E-—hF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loss BE
Loss for the purpose of calculating basic FETEERERER Z B
loss per share (17,526) (1,613)
2015 2014
—E-hF —EE
(Restated)
(E51))

Number of shares B E

Issued ordinary shares at the beginning of year 7 & )25 17 & 38 ik 5,227,800,000 3,500,000,000

Effect of placing of shares upon the Listing BRI &M D 2 722 - 784,520,550

Effect of exercise of share options ITIE BB 2 & - 905,205

Weighted average number of ordinary shares gt E BRI EAEIE 2~

for the purpose of calculating basic AR IR T B (AT A ()
loss per share (note (i) 5,227,800,000 4,285,425,755

Note: Btat -

0] For the purpose of calculation of basic loss per share for the years (i) REEHE-_TZ—AFR-ZT—NF+=A
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, the share subdivisions of the ST—HUEFENBREABEMNS - A2
Company being effective on 8 January 2015 (note 30(c)) and 9 APRIR=ZZ—AF— ANA (KH3iF300) &
October 2015 (note 30(d)) respectively (“Share Subdivisions”), were —Z—aF+ANB (f30(d) &£ 82 K&K
deemed to be effective throughout the period from 1 January 2014 FHRTROF@ADHEAR T —NF—A
to 31 December 2015. Accordingly, the weighted average number —BE-ZT-AF+-A=+—BEEHH
of ordinary shares of the Company in issue during the year ended Ee Bt BEZZ—WFE+_A=+—
31 December 2014 were adjusted to reflect the effect of the Share HILFE - ARAIB BT 2 L@ INETY
Subdivisions. HEERE  ARBBROFAZZE -

Diluted loss per share (b) SBREEEE

The effects of the Company’s potential ordinary shares in respect
of the outstanding share options are anti-dilutive for the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

ARARBE—Z-—REFR-_ZT-—NF+_-A
=+ HIEFEZ RITHRBEEENK 2 B

Bz RREE

=
TE e
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17.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries
and wages subject to a monthly maximum amount of HK$1,500
(HK$1,250 prior to June 2014) per employee and vest fully with
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are
members of a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and wages to the central
pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations of
all existing and future retired employees of these subsidiaries. The only
obligation of these subsidiaries with respect to the central pension
scheme is to meet the required contributions under the scheme.

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / & E #} & 2015

17.

RAEREE

AEERBEEERGEAESIIEDREENES
ERESEERFMEATEDE ([RERE ) - K
SEERESIHZ HREFERTENS%E
SR EEGAKSLEAR1500BT(R_2—N
FRAFM,260870) KA EBESFEHHE2
MEENES -

A SR [ B AR L O P B A B0 IE B 20003t 7 TR
BENHRRRSEE - ZEMBARARSRERRK
T HREREAFERTENE T AN LMT - U
RERBERIREES « TR REAEZ SIS
RAEIFHRE RATENKESNRKBEFEE - %5
M2 Bt IR RS A Bl — B A RE N B3R
THRERMK -
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥  MERRE
Furniture Plant
and Leasehold Motor Office and
fixture  improvement vehicle Mould  equipment  machinery Total
BRREE HEEE "E B BORE  BEREE ag

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR

Cost A
At1 January 2014 ZZ-NE-A-H 34 - 1,161 1,280 395 23,501 26,371
Additions NE - - - - 27 54 81
Exchange realignment EXAE - - - - - ©) ©)
At 31 December 2014 RZT-NE+=A
and 1 January 2015 =t—BRk

—Z-1F

—H—H 34 - 1,161 1,280 422 23,549 26,446
Additions RE 10 392 - - 139 271 812
Exchange realignment fE 5 HE - - (10) - ©) (566) (585)
At 31 December 2015 RZT-RE

+-F=t-H 44 392 1,151 1,280 552 23,254 26,673

Accumulated depreciation Z3t#%E

At 1 January 2014 “E-mF-A-H 34 - 561 1,280 345 17,195 19,415
Charge for the year ENFZ - - 175 - 12 1,233 1,420
Exchange redlignment ExEE - - - - - (1) (1)
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-mE+=A
and 1 January 2015 =t+-Bk

—Z-1%—fA—H 34 - 736 1,280 357 18,427 20,834
Charge for the year FRAX 1 16 182 - 19 1,237 1,455
Exchange realignment BN A - - ®) - Ul (393) (408)
At 31 December 2015 RZZE-14F

+-A=+-H 35 16 910 1,280 369 19,271 21,881
Carrying amount RHE
At 31 December 2015 RZE-HE

+-A=+—H 9 376 241 - 183 3,983 4,792
At 31 December 2014 RZE—MF

+-RA=1t— - - 425 - 65 5122 5,612
As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of a motor vehicle held RIZZE—RAF+A=+—0 FAEEREREHE
by the Group under finance lease amounted to approximately BER—MSEMREER198,000E8 (= —
HK$198,000 (2014: HK$356,000). F 1 356,000 7T) °

94 Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015



Notes to the

B ISRk MRt

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z-RF+_A=+—RAIL=FE

19.

20.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

19.

BILEE

Cost
Additions and at 31 December 2015

B

Rt H

Accumulated amortisation
Charge for the year and at 31 December 2015

Carrying amount BRMEE

At 31 December 2015

Intangible assets represent software applications acquired from
independent third parties. Such intangible assets have definite useful
lives and are amortised on a straight-line basis over 5 years.

INVENTORIES

ANERR-E-AF+-A=1—H

FRARSXER-_T—RF+-A=+—H

RZZE—RAF+=ZA=1+—H

20.

BVEAERENBYE=HBENEMHERREN - 5H
BVAERRFHERIIREREENSFREE -

rE

2014
—Z—puF
HK$'000
TET

Raw materials B
Work-in progress ERG
Finished goods BUAK oh

At the end of reporting period, the Group’s inventories were stated at
cost.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, no reversal of allowance for
inventories (2014: HK$1,026,000) arose from sales of obsolete
inventories.

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / & B 3§45 2015

10,756
3,882
1,140

15,778

RIWEHR - AREZFEIHIRRATIER

HE-_Z—AF+-A=+—HILEE  HERER
EEEETFERERR (ZF—NUF : 1,026,000/%8
JT) e

95



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 3R R BT

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-ZT—RAF+-A=+—HLFE

21.

96

TRADE RECEIVABLES

21. FEUWERR

2015 2014

—E-—hF —T—mF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade receivables UL BR K 5,927 19,142

The Group’s trading terms with its major customers is either on credit
or to provide the Group with irrecoverable letters of credit issued by
reputable banks, with terms within 30 days (2014: 30 days). The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the directors.

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, based on the
invoice date is as follows:

AEERETBEFPNE S ERARERAAEE R
HEBASERTETHHRA0 B (ZF—MF : 30
B BN AT U B (5 P RS o AN 52 B S R (B 28 B R
TEITRRIGIES - M S MR EE TSN

AEERER B EREERROBRER AT -

2015 2014

—E—HF —F—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

THERT FHET

0-30 days 0&E30H 621 19,106
31-60 days 31HZ60H 1,382 35
61-90 days 61 HZ90H 153 1
Over 90 days Q0B E 3,771 -
5,927 19,142

As of 31 December 2015, trade receivables of approximately
HK$5,306,000 (2014: HK$36,000) were past due but not impaired.
These trade receivables related to customers for whom there was no
recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables,
based on due date, is as follows:

HE-_Z-RAF+-_A=+—8 EKEZD
5,306,000 7T (—Z— P4 : 36,0008 7T) & B EE
KA - ZEEUERFEY MR ORBNERE
B o ZEFRUERFIRI BB BRI DT T

2015 2014

—E—HF —T—EF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THExT FHT

0-30 days 0% 30H 1,382 35
31-60 days 31HZ60H 153 1
Over 60 days 60 BIA £ 3,771 -
5,306 36
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. FEWERFR (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables at the end of REBERBEHRNEREZINEMEATIES
reporting period are denominated in the following currencies: 8 :
2015 2014
—EB-HF —E—E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
HK$ BT 15 -
uss$ ETT 5,912 19,142
5,927 19,142
22. PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS 22, ENFREREZESE
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHAT
Deposits b 1,053 698
Prepayments FEfH R IE 4,503 5,220
5,556 5,918
Neither of the above assets is past due nor impaired. The financial FMEEMRERISERE - EU LEBTIHANS
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which BhE EE T8 BE 3 HASID 8 AU 52 ) FE LGRS o
there was no recent history of default.
23. BANK AND CASH BALANCES 23. HRITRRESLEE
At the end of reporting period, the bank and cash balances of the RIBER  AEEBRITERASERIZTIEMET
Group are denominated in the following currencies: & :
2015 2014
—EB-HF —Z—UE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
HKS BT 18,786 33,454
RMB AR# 5,944 3,618
uss$ = 8,255 17,300
32,985 54,272
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's ARBHIBBINEAZ I ARIMBEIINEE F 15D
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of RASIE - EIE R (B SMERHIRR -

Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.
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24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 24, ERERIARESERE
2015 2014
—E—hHF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade payables FEBRFR 11,682 16,198
Bills payables B - 3,814
11,682 20,012
An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade and bills payables based on REERBRERRBEERE ARG ENEMNRRRE
invoice date at the end of reporting period is as follows: NEBHRERTOT -
2015 2014
—E-AHF —T—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHAT
0-30 days 0&30H 2,743 12,284
31-60 days 31260H 4,332 2,744
61-90 days 61290 H 640 4,984
Over 90 days 90 HEA E 3,967 -
11,682 20,012
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills payables at the end AGERN R E HIRAO R RN R RIR RO RRE E LA
of reporting period are denominated in the following currencies: THIEEEHE -
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—mFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
TFE T FAT
HKS$ BT 317 1,685
RMB AR 7,198 3,622
uss$ = 4,167 14,705
11,682 20,012
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25. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND 25, HMENRKE ST REFEH
ACCRUED EXPENSES
2015 2014
—E-IF —T—meE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FHT
Deposits received from customers BRI & 1,378 3,107
Accruals for operations K EETIEE 1,646 2,081
Accruals for staff costs JERTE TR 2,768 2,937
Others Hib 103 60
5,895 8,185
26. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 26. EN—REEBFIE
The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. ZENFIBAEER RS REREKEE -
27. BANK BORROWINGS AND OVERDRAFTS 27. ROTBEREX
2015 2014
—g-%f —z—pm
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Bank loans RITER - 3,790
Bank overdrafts HRITEX - 4,259
- 8,049

The Group’s bank loans are denominated in RMB.

The bank loans and overdrafts of the Group are arranged at floating
rates, thus exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The
average interest rates of the Group’s bank loans and overdrafts during
the year are as follows:

AEBERTEFTAARKEE -

AEERTERREIIRFEHE - AmM<SAEHE
BReREF AR - AEENFARITERREX

BTIFIEMT -

2015 2014

—E-HF —T—F

Bank loans RITER 7.13% 7.47%
Import/export loans B HOBER 3.84% 3.83%
Bank overdrafts RITEX 11.42% 6.18%

As of 31 December 2014, the Group had undrawn facilities of
approximately HK$16,928,000, such banking facilities were terminated
during the year. As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s banking facilities
were secured by personal guarantee by the Company’s directors as
detailed in note 37 to the financial statements.
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28. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

28. MEHEEMTIE

Present value of minimum

Minimum lease payments lease payments

BERAERE BEAERERE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-ARF —T-HNF ZE-HF _TNOF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET FERT FHET
Within one year —FR 167 168 158 147
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 5 —Z % AF (BIEE RME) 43 210 42 200
210 378 200 347
Less: Future finance charges o RRRE B (10) (81) N/A N/A
Present value of lease obligations & #&EIRE 200 347 200 347
Less: Amount due for settlement & : 128 A R Z|Hi 4 %8
within 12 months S (REatE
(shown under current liabilties) T8 NHER) (158) (147)
Amount due for settlement 12{A A& DB e AR EE
after 12 months 42 200

The Group had leased a motor vehicle under finance lease. The average
lease term is 5 years. During the year, the average effective borrowing
rate was 7.42% (2014: 7.42%). Interest rate is fixed at the contract date
and thus exposes the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The lease is
on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered
into for contingent rental payments.

The finance lease payables are denominated in HKS.

The finance lease payables of the Group are secured by the lessor’s

title to the leased assets.
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BHE-T
29.

—hE+TZA=t+—RALFE
DEFERRED TAXATION

At the end of reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$8,838,000 (2014: HK$1,058,000) that are available
for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not
been recognised in respect of these losses due to unpredictability of
future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses
HK$4,522,000 (2014: Nil) that will expire in five years from 2016 to
2020. Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law, a withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared
in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008
onwards.

As at 31 December 2015, no deferred taxation in respect of taxable
temporary differences had been recognised as the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries were loss making during the year.

At 31 December 2014, deferred taxation has not been provided in the
financial statements in respect of temporary difference attributable to
profits earned by the Group’s PRC subsidiary since 1 January 2008 as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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29. EERIF

MRS EAR - AN E R B A M 478,838,000 T (=
T —[U4 ¢ 1,058,000 7T) B B T8 B9 18 A /R 5 R 0k
ERBUEF c MR FHEBI ERRECHIEELE - )b
B P AR B R SRR B S BT TR o SRR E’J%RIEEﬁa

AE184,522,0008 T (ZF— M4 : &) - ==
—ANFEZZE-_FFRFREER ET@%RIEESTE—J
fEIR A4S

REEEMEEE RPENBARR NG~
F — B AR BRI Y4 F S R A A BRI ©

RZF-—RF+-A=+—H UERERBERE
ZERERRIEIRIR - FRREE R BIME A RN F
IS A -

REZF-—MF+-A=+—H  BAEEDEEEL
AAZETN\F— A HERRAENEH TR EE
REI SRR AN B AHRIRIE IR A - Thi e A S A
BB 2 R O R [ R AR AT R N @A A RR
AR o
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30. SHARE CAPITAL

30. KA

Number of ordinary shares

ZRRHE
at HK$0.01 at HK$0.001  at HK$0.0002
per share per share per share HK$’000
BREE SREE SREE
0.01%& 7T 0.001 & T 0.0002 /& 7T FHT
Authorised EE
At 1 January 2014 R_ZT—NFE—A—H 38,000,000 - - 380
Increase in authorised ordinary & fins% i 3@ A% (413 ()
shares (note (a)) 962,000,000 - - 9,620
As at 31 December 2014 and HR-Z—MFE+=-F=+—
1 January 2015 Ak=—F—RF—HA—H 1,000,000,000 - - 10,000
Effects of shares subdivision R #7422 (A5 (c))
(note (c)) (1,000,000,000) 10,000,000,000 - -
Effects of shares subdivision & #7402 2 (f1:4 (d)
(note (d)) — (10,000,000,000) 50,000,000,000 -
At 31 December 2015 R-BE—RHEF
+=BA=+—H - - 50,000,000,000 10,000
Issued 28T
At 1 January 2014 R=_E—NF—HA—H 2,000 - - =
Capitalisation issue (note (a)) EAREEIT (M3t (@) 69,998,000 - - 700
Issue of shares by way of FBAREEITRD
placing (note (b)) (Ka% (b)) 34,500,000 - - 345
Exercise of share options 1TIF B A RE 56,000 - - 1
As at 31 December 2014 and R =Z—PU4F
1 January 2015 +—A=t—8xK
—2—hF—HA—H 104,556,000 - _ 1,046
Effects of shares subdivision R34 82E (ff:t(c)
(note (c)) (104,556,000)  1,045,560,000 - -
Effects of shares subdivision B3 4F40 > & (f1:1(d)
(note (d) —  (1,045,560,000) 5,227,800,000 -
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—RF
+=A=+-—8 - - 5,227,800,000 1,046

* Represents amount less than HK$1,000

102

* JEREELR1,000 T

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 3 2% MY =

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHEZZ—RAF+-A=+—HLFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a) On 20 June 2014, written resolutions of the shareholders of the Company
were passed to approve the increase in authorised share capital of the
Company from HK$380,000 to HK$10,000,000 by the creation of an
additional 962,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each; and conditional on the
share premium account of the Company being credited pursuant to the
placing of shares of the Company; the directors of the Company were
authorised to capitalise the sum of HK$699,980 standing to the credit of
the share premium account of the Company by issuing 69,998,000 shares
of HK$0.01 each, credited as fully paid at par.

(b) On 18 July 2014, the Company issued 34,500,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$1.35 each upon completion of the placing
of the Company’s shares.

(c) Pursuant to the share subdivision on 8 January 2015, the authorised share
capital of the Company of HK$10,000,000 was divided into
10,000,000,000 subdivided shares, of which 1,045,560,000 subdivided
shares was issued and fully paid. After the shares subdivision, each of the
existing issued and unissued shares of par value of HK$0.01 each in the
share capital of the Company was subdivided into 10 subdivided shares of
par value of HK$0.001 each.

(d) Pursuant to the share subdivision on 9 October 2015, the authorised
share capital of the Company of HK$10,000,000 was divided into
50,000,000,000 subdivided shares, of which 5,227,800,000 subdivided
shares was issued and fully paid. After the shares subdivision, each of the
existing issued and unissued shares of par value of HK$0.001 each in the
share capital of the Company was subdivided into 5 subdivided shares of
par value of HK$0.0002 each.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the
return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The capital structure of the Group comprises all
components of shareholders’ equity.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently by considering the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue
of new debts, redemption of existing debts or selling assets to reduce
debts. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the Group to
maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public float of
at least 25% of the shares. The Group receives a report from the share
registrars weekly on substantial share interests showing the non-public
float and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit from
the date of the Listing. As of 31 December 2015, 33% (2014: 33%) of
the shares were in public hands.
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30. M4 ()

it -

(@ RZZ—MFEANAZ+H  AARRRBBEERZ
ZR LA A #5188 7% 962,000,000 B & A% EIE 0.01 B 7T 2
BHMNRAY B INA D FLEEARA ¢ F5 380,000 T8 =
10,000,000 A 7T R AE AR &1 fR 17 i B BR AR IR AR A R A%
NEEEAFMERNBERT - RAREFEREGAR
FIRS 15 54 (& BR #E BR 58609,980 B T R E A - ARE
{B%%17 69,998,000 f% & AR EI{E 0.01 8 7T ABRFI 1E 4L
RERRD ©

(b) RZF—WE+LA+N\A  RAARRDEETHK
B - AR BB RS 1.35 8 LA (B %97 34,500,000
MEAEE0.01 B TR L EAL

(© RER-_T—AF— AN\BZRHIFM - RARZE
& A% 7% 10,000,000 74 Jt. 47 48 4 10,000,000,000 A% #7
AR - & A 1,045,560,000 % BEHITREEZ
WHRR D - R FME  RNARBRATEBREER
0.01 BT ZRABBITRABITRNEFMAI10K
FIREE 0.001 BT Z FRABAL D °

(d) BIER=ZZ—AFTANBZRDIFHA - NDRZE
JE & 75 10,000,000 % 7T #7 4 /4 50,000,000,000 A& #*
#RRE {5 - & A 5,227,800,000 % AR BEITRERE 2
FHRG - ROFAE  RNARBRAFEBREEBER
0.001 B2 HA B BITRAREITROEIFMA5M
SR {E 0.0002 78 7T 2 FrAEAR (D ©

AEEEREAN B RRREAEEFEL LN
K @R EE KRR BT ARRFRFRER -
AEBERREBERRIESH M BHARTTE

REEEBE BE AR AR R EGHEE AERES R R M
KEREERER AEEREBBINRE - BT
AR AR RE Bl LA R A TR (ETS - BRI A EBIE
EEREEURDEBHEZH X TEEREEARERE - RE
EE-RAFRIZT-MNFE+_A=+—BILFE -
BEARAEEMNEE  BORn R EELES -

N 62 ] 4 5 LA RS P _E T ML 2 M — SN EBRE N2 B
RENRE  RNEBEARIBEL2%RG BARFR
2o ASEERABEERMBEELEZLIIREAR
HREZEARMERRE  ZREERAEEES L
MERARSEETB% 2 RE R_E—AF
+ZRA=+—0  KEEEFEIBR(ZZT—MF : 33%)
B B R BRI G o
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31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 31. ERQFZBHBRRE
COMPANY
2015 2014
—E-—hF —E—E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary KRB AR ZIZE 21,772 29,772
Current assets RENEE
Prepayments TEITFRIE 219 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE B B8 1 B RKIB 12,457 5,516
Amount due from a corporate shareholder FEUR — A AR B FROE 5 5
Bank and cash balances RITMIB 4% 23,396 39,759
36,077 45,280
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accrued expenses H b FRIE R ERTE A 169 -
Amount due to a subsidiary FEAS — M B A R RIE 9,523 13,751
9,692 13,751
Net current assets REEEFE 26,385 31,529
NET ASSETS REEEFE 48,157 61,301
Capital and reserves BRAR#E
Share capital i@ 1,046 1,046
Reserves = 47,111 60,255
TOTAL EQUITY R 48,157 61,301
*  Represents amount less than HK$1,000 * KMER1,000E T2 FE
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 HEFER _Z—RF=ZA-+—HHAERKET
March 2016. o
Tang Wai Ting, Samson Mak Hing Keung, Thomas
BHEE B EE
Director Director
2 E3

104 Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 3 2% MY =

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHEZZ—RAF+-A=+—HLFE

32. RESERVES 32. f##E
(@) Group (@ Z£E
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein are AEEFRENSERERNEDELGEEER R
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and ErElaRkRGeEREBRAZY -

other comprehensive income and the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

(b) Company (b) AT
Share Option  Contributed
premium reserve surplus  Accumulated

(note 32(c)(i))  (note 32(c)(v)) (note 32(c)(vi)) losses Total

ROEE BRERE BABH
(BizE32c)) (Ri32e)) (Has2e)v) RiESR aE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fifzt TAT TAR TAT AT AT
At 1 January 2014 RZZE-mE-A—H - - 29,764 (51) 29,713
Recognition of share-based payments DA D BERR T - 327 - - 327
Capitalisation issue BARET 30(a) (700) - - - (700)
Placing of shares &R 30(0) 46,230 - - - 46,230
Share issue expenses BHETHES (6,867) - - - (6,867)
Exercise of share options T ERE 84 (10 - - 74
Total comprehensive income for the year A2 E K% 458 - - - (8,522) (8,522)

At31 December 2014 and 1 Jenuary 2015 A= F—E+=A=1—H

“ZT-RF-A—H 38,747 317 29,764 (8,573) 60,255
Total comprehensive income for theyear W2 iz 4858 - - - (13,144) (13,144)
At 31 December 2015 W-Z-RE+-A=+-R 38,747 317 29,764 (21,7117) 47,111
() Nature and purpose of reserves () RENMHERRE
(i) Share premium U] R17 518
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the BERESHSATE  ARAKRNEE
funds in the share premium account of the Company are BZASAHRDIRTARABR - HE
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided BERE RS B R - ANEIARRE
that immediately following the date on which the dividend NEEERAREFRETCIHZE
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a % e

position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue Bt s EERB LSRR EEZ B
of shares at a price in excess of their par value per share BT - WAMBRE A IT R AR 3
and after deduction of capitalisation issue and issuance TIRABRELZHE -

costs of shares.
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32. RESERVES (continued)
Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

()

106

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(Vi)

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries’ articles of association, the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to allocate 10% of
its profit after tax as determined in accordance with the
relevant accounting principles and financial regulations
applicable to PRC companies to the statutory reserve until
such reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital. The
appropriation to the reserve must be made before any
distribution of dividends to equity holders. The statutory
surplus reserve can be used to offset previous years’
losses, if any, and part of the statutory surplus reserve can
be capitalised as paid-in capital provided that the amount
of such reserve remaining after the capitalisation shall not
be less than 25% of the paid-in capital of the Group’s
subsidiaries.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between the
nominal value of the share capital and share premium of
Central Pacific International Group Limited (“Central Pacific
International”) amounted to HK$10,300,000 and
HK$2,100,000 respectively at the date on which it was
acquired by Millennium Pacific International Group Limited
(“Millennium Pacific”), over the nominal value of 1,000
shares issued by the Company pursuant to the Group
reorganisation for the purpose of the Listing (the “Group
Reorganisation”).

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 4(b)(iii) to the financial statements.

Option reserve

Option reserve represents the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Company recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for equity-settled
share-based payments in note 4(q) to the financial
statements.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company represented the
excess of the consideration of Central Pacific International
at the date on which it was acquired by Millennium Pacific,
over the nominal value of 1,000 shares issued by the
Company pursuant to the Group Reorganisation.

32. f#f& (4E)
(c) RBEMNMEERRE (H)

(i)  EERE
RIEFREDQRNERANEEH B EAF
MRFEHEREA  NEEREMNE
RAVBRBREHSHIRERFEA DM
FR & B 75 16 191 P 7 5E 9 B4 10% B 14
WA EEE G EERFEEEDER
BINH)50% © [8) {7 H0 1B R B AE AR
SREDIRBE 2 BIEH 5T BB
BRI RER BT EMEE(E)
B AT RBHEBIRETENAES
BAR BT ERERSNZEREES
ETNSERAEEETRMBATEMY
IR A #) 25% o

(i)  BUHEE

AftRERETPERIREEER AR ([H
[ % Bk & M@ ]) % Millennium Pacific
International Group Limited ([ Millennium
Pacific) W 8 & H H IR A | &
10,300,000 7% 7t & % 15 & {& 2,100,000
BILD RIEAR R RIRIBEAREER L
HwITZ BHE(EBEEH]) #171,000 %
Rt VT (E 2 A Z 58 o

(v)  SMNEBREHE
INE BB FE O ERREGINERI
REMAEERFTAINEEZR - EELR
B 75 3R 2R B 5 4(D) (i) AT By & 5T R
I e

() FBEEGE
BERFEEERTARRREZRITE
B ARSMGHBE 2onE &
IR SRR M G 4) BEARE SR AE DA
Befn AR MR 2 B BERRER

i)  BAZEE
KA BABBRIETPERREEE
Millennium Pacific i % & H 89X B2 1A
AN BB R SR B S 4H %17 1,000 B AR 15
FIEERIEB
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33.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

On 20 June 2014, written resolution of the shareholders of the
Company was passed to conditionally approve and adopt two share
option schemes namely, Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (“Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme”) and Share Option Scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) to recognise and motivate the contributions that eligible
participants have made or may make to the Group. The Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme was valid and effective for a period commencing from
20 June 2014 to the date immediately prior to the Listing of the
Company (i.e. 17 July 2014), after which no further option to be
granted, but the provisions of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall
remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to
the exercise of any options granted prior thereto or otherwise as may
be required in accordance with the provisions of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme.

The Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 20 June 2014
will remain in force for a period of ten years from its effective date to 19
June 2024.

Particulars of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Share Option
Scheme of the Company are set out in Appendix IV to the Company’s
prospectus dated 27 June 2014.

Pursuant to the resolution of the shareholders of the Company passed
on 20 June 2014, it was resolved to grant 2,000,000 share options to
an employee under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, to subscribe for
shares of the Company at an exercise price of HK$1.35 per option. The
share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
exercisable for a period from the date immediately prior to the Listing of
the Company to 19 June 2016.

Apart from 2,000,000 share options were granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme on 20 June 2014, there is no share option was
granted under the Share Option Scheme during the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.

As of 31 December 2015, the Group had 97,200,000 (2014: 1,944,000)
share options outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

As resulted by the completion of Share Subdivisions, and pursuant to
the supplementary guidance issued by the Stock Exchange on 5
September 2005 with respect to the adjustment of share options under
Rule 23.03(13) of the GEM Listing Rules, the exercise price of the
outstanding share options granted by the Company and the total
number of shares of the Company comprised in the outstanding share
options which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all
outstanding share options thereunder were adjusted.
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BAURAD RER AT

DY =34 10 g
RZZ—MFERAZTE  AARRFBBEIRE
2 BIRIHLE MR MR RGER 8] - B LT RTEE
Berest &) ([ L AT AT 81 ) RB R at 81 ([ 18
BetgrtEl]) - MRBREEA B2 EE B YAl
SHAEEER BB/ - EHATBREAEHE-F
—HFEARAZTAEEEERARF LA —H (B1=
ToNEEA+EH) IERRBR R AR - ERBE
SR B - 1 T AT AR R BTN A+
RN FIRA  ABUE SRS B A AT BEIR AR TE IR IR £
T A BB AR A T 81 6 SR BV (T B IR B ST T T =
BUHREERBR

ARBER-Z—FERA -+ HRGBERESS
BRF S AR AR 10FANFR > KN _F M
FARATNBAREM -

AAF) 2 E AR B R BRAR A A 812 SRR
ARF BT —WEAA =+ A2 RRE RN
s -

BREAARRRR -_T—NFRA -+ EBBIRE
B BAREBELTABREASIR -RERRY
2,000,000 {7 & B - LAIRTTEE &) B 1.35/8
TTREBARRI o RIE AT IR A0S
BrEmERARE LM —REEE_FT—XFRA
TR EHREA FE -

BN T —FNA =+ BIRE LT AT 8%
H#92,000,000 0 EEESN REBE—FT—AFR_
Z-EF+Z A=+ RIEFE - SEREERER
B B A -

RIZ—AF+-_A=+—8  RNEER LTHER
5T 8]~ 45 97,200,00013 ( == — MU 4F : 1,944,000
19) RATIEREARAE -

BARERRD O - BRBEBIAR _ETRFNA
F A phal R A8 B 55 23.03(13) K18 T Y B B 4
ARBENFEITIES AR RIEAREMRER M AR
IT{EPERRAE BV T(E 18 B B M AR T T RE AR P IR AR
DS (FT A MARITE AR TR 0] PRS2
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 33. URHBHBERSR(E)
Equity-settled share option scheme (continued) URERFEE 2 BRESE (&)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their RITHIEARES B R A NE T TEE 2 Z8
related weighted average exercise price as follows: T~
2015 2014
—B-HF —E-MF
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
options exercise price options exercise price
BREHE MEFEHTEE ARSI MEETEHITEE
HK$ HKS$
BT BT
Outstanding at the beginning REFIRITE

of the year 1,944,000 1.35 - -
Granted during the year RERZH - - 2,000,000 1.35
Exercised during the year RERNTTEE - - (56,000) 1.35
Adjustment for share subdivision F& (7 ¥ 48 2 A%

(note 30(c)) (K1aE 30(c) 17,496,000 0.135 - -
Adjustment for share subdivision F& (7 ¥ 48 2 A%

(note 30(d)) (K15 30(d)) 77,760,000 0.027 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year ~ AFE R AR1TMH 97,200,000 0.027 1,944,000 1.35
Exercisable at the end of the year RERATITE 97,200,000 0.027 1,944,000 1.35
The fair value of the share options granted on 20 June 2014 determined RZZ—WFENAZ+HERHZBREZ AR ERA
using the Black-Scholes valuation model was HK$327,000. The WM — SFREEEREEE 0 £327,000/87T °
significant inputs into the model were share price of HK$1.22 as at the ZEHEEZHAHB AN L BHNRE228
grant date, exercise price of HK$1.35 per option, expected volatility of TC TEEE M ERE .35 T - TEHIKIR23.2%
23.2%, expected life of options of two years, expected zero dividend EREZEAMFFH  ERATSREXRMEN-ZF
paid-out rate and annual risk-free interest rate of 0.4% for exercise date —FEA+N\BRBZITE B2 FERERRFE
beginning on 18 July 2014. The volatility measured at the standard 0.4% © IRBTEFTRE R |2 IZEREMTE Z KR -
deviation of expected share price returns is based on statistical analysis. TDRBERTEFAOWE -
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34. SUBSIDIARIES 34. WEATA
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 are ARARZMBRARIN=-ZE—RAF+=-A=1+—RHFB
set out below: T
Place of
incorporation/ Registered and Percentage of Principal activities
Name establishment paid up capital ownership interest and place of operation
g BB HEMRBRRAE BEERZEINL TEERREEHH
Direct Indirect
i G
Millennium Pacific British Virgin Islands 1,000 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding,
11 September 2013 of US$1 each Hong Kong
RBRAHE 1,000 B R EE REZR - BA
—E-Z£NA+-H TETLHERER
Central Pacific International Hong Kong HK$12,400,000 - 100%  Trading of electronic
14 January 2000 devices, Hong Kong
FERNEE B 12,400,000 7T BETRHBES BF
—ZRRE-A1NA
Millennium Pacific Trading Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Trading of electronic
Limited 10 October 2014 devices, Hong Kong
5k 10,0007 7T BETRHBES BB
—E-mE+A+H
Millennium Pacific Solutions Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Inactive, Hong Kong
Limited 10 October 2014
3 10,000 57T EmEY BE
—E-mE+A+H
Millennium Pacific Concept Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Research, development
Limited 21 April 2015 and trading of
electronic devices,
Hong Kong
5k 10,0007 BErRBEHERES
—E-RfMAZ+—H Bk
Millennium Pacific Data Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Inactive, Hong Kong
Management Limited 21 April 2015
Tk 10,0007 EmEY BE
“E-HIFNAZ+-H
Millennium Pacific Information Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Provision of marketing
Technology Limited 21 April 2015 and e-commerce
services, Hong Kong
Bk 10,0007 7T REZHERET
—E-RFMAZ+—H BBRY - BE

Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited / & E #} & 2015
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34. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

35.

36.

110

34. ME2TE (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Registered and Percentage of Principal activities
Name establishment paid up capital ownership interest and place of operation
A% SRR R 3 MR AR RA BEERZEINL FTEEBREE LY
Direct Indirect
Hi% %
Millennium Pacific Investments Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Inactive, Hong Kong
Limited 23 October 2015
EiE 10,0007 7T LEED - AR
“T-RFtTAZT=H
RERREF ORI BRAR PRC Registered and paid - 100% Inactive, PRC
Central Pacific Electronics 12 May 2004 up capital of
(Shen Zhen) Limited* (‘CPE”) HK$5,000,000
hERREF ORI BRAR hiE ERliE Ve EEiEy hE
([RERLEF]) I = 5,000,000 7C
HENEFCEINEBAR PRC Registered and paid - 100%  Research, development
CPIT 3 July 2007 up capital of and manufacturing
HK$10,000,000 of electronic devices,
PRC
FENEF H T R R A e REES TR
—TTLFLAZA 10,000,000 #7T HE
EBATEES (RINBRAF PRC Registered: - 100%  Inactive, PRC
Millennium Pacific Trading 21 May 2015 RMB1,000,000
(Shenzhen) Limited* (‘MPSZTL") Paid-up:
RMB200,000
EBRATEES(RINERAF i FH EEEy hE
(TEBXEFES]) “T-RERA=T—H AE#1,000,0007C
e
AE#200,0007C

* English names are for identification purpose only

Note: CPE, CPIT and MPSZTL are wholly-foreign owned enterprises established

in the PRC.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group did not have any capital

commitments.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group did not have any

contingent liabilities.

35.

36.

Y EXEEESES

Kiit - PERMEF HEMNETFREBRRFFESRETD
BRI B E R -

BARERE

WZE-RAFER-_Z-NF+-A=+—H x&£HE

I AR AR & A

o

HREE

WZE-RAFER-_Z-NF+-A=+—0 x&£HE

WA KABE
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37.

38.

39.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than those balances of related party disclosed elsewhere in the
financial statements, the Group had the following material transactions
with its related parties during the year.

Guarantee

Mr. Tang Wai Ting, Samson (“Mr. Tang”) and Ms. Chan Kai Hei (“Mrs.
Tang”) (resigned as the director of the Company on 31 July 2015),
directors of the Company, had guaranteed the banking facilities and
bank loans obtained by certain subsidiaries within the Group to the
extent of HK$58,791,000 and HK$3,791,000 respectively, such
banking facilities were terminated during the year ended 31 December
2015.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
aforementioned guarantee given by Mr. Tang and Mrs. Tang constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules but fully exempted pursuant to Rule 20.88 of the GEM
Listing Rules as the Company has fulfilled the relevant requirements.

Key Management Compensation

Other than those disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements, there
is no remuneration paid to key management personnel of the Company
during the year (2014: Nil).

LEASE COMMITMENTS
At 31 December 2015, the total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

37.

38.

BELIX S
AR B 25 4 o L1t B2 0 R O G 5 A 850
FREMYHE THIEAZS -

REER

ER

HE-_ZT-AF+_A=+—HLFE AQRES
BEEiaE ((BEE]) RRERZ T (T8AR]) (R=
T-AFLA=TABEAARBER) RAEEA
& T M B2 A %A 5 Bl 558,791,000 7T &
3,791,000 B T IRITRE RIBRITERIRBEER - M
BRFTRERRILE -

AABEERS LALLM R REHROERSE
REIZER ETMRBE0EMACHBERERS
HERBRIZR EWARRISE20.88 K EEEHA R - AR
AABDFABRERE

TEEEENS
BRI EEN  FAMERARRT
TEEREAEXNME(ZT—MF : &)

BEEE
R-FB—HF+-A=+—8  RETTEHELH
BT R RRE T E RGBT

2015 2014

—E-—ARF —T—mF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within one year —FR 2,948 3,096
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EFRF(BEERERE) 2,397 5,348
5,345 8,444

During the year, operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its offices, factory premises and staff quarters.
For the year ended 31 December 2015, leases are negotiated for an
average term of 5 years (2014: 5 years) and rentals are fixed over the
lease terms and do not include contingent rentals.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 21 March 2016.
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RER  KEHERREARERETHER - TH
BEMETIEEENNES #HE-T-HE+-A
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Three Year Financial Summary

ZFMBRE

Year ended/As at 31 December
BE+-A=+—HALEE R+=-A=+—A8

2015 2014 2013
—E-HF —F—NF ==
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET FHET
OPERATING RESULT S
Turnover e 67,098 237,226 348,321
Cost of sales SR (61,054) (210,511) (308,843)
Gross profit EF 6,044 26,715 39,478
Other income Hap A 1,084 342 272
Selling and distribution costs SHE K $HRK AR (3,321) (2,967) (4,615)
Administrative expenses THAX (20,890) (23,422) (19,765)
(Loss)/profit from operation IE (fFE) R (17,083) 668 15,370
Finance costs M%ER (424) (1,065) (1,754)
(Loss)/profit before tax BRBLAT(BR)RA (17,507) (397) 13,616
Income tax expense FEEiRX (19) (1,216) (3,336)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE),HEF (17,526) (1,613) 10,280
Other comprehensive income FREMEEBA
for the year, net of tax: HIBRBLIE -
ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss: AIREEF N BEEIEEMIEAR -
Exchange differences on translating foreign A INSE TSI O BB S E R
operations 548 8 (811)
Other comprehensive income for the year, FAEMEBEIA - BREE
net after tax FE 548 8 (311)
Total comprehensive income for the year ARABEEAEGEFRAZEBA
attributable to the owners of the Company Pk ol (16,978) (1,605) 9,969
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERAEE
Total assets BERE 72,265 102,364 85,495
Total liabilities s (24,052) (37,173) (58,809)
Net assets EEFE 48,213 65,191 26,686
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 72 T #H A FE{L R 48,213 65,191 26,686
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